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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 
 

Dear Shareholders,  

Good Morning ladies and gentlemen, I have much pleasure in welcoming you all to the fourth 
(4th ) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited (IrconLRHL) 
and present the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 2024-25. I thank each one of 
you for making it convenient for sparing your valuable time for this meeting. 

 

About the Company 
 
It is my privilege to place before you, few highlights of IrconLRHL for the FY2024-25. 

Ircon International Limited (“IRCON”) has been awarded the work of construction of Four/ Six 
lane Greenfield Ludhiana – Rupnagar National Highway no. NH-205K from junction with NE-5 
village near Manewal (Ludhiana) to junction with NH205 near Bheora Village (Rupnagar) 
including spur to Kharar with Ludhiana bypass under Bharatmala Pariyojana in the State of 
Punjab on Hybrid Annuity Mode: Package-3 (Design Ch. 66.440 to Design Ch. 90.500 and spur 
to kharar Design Ch. 0.000 to Design Ch. 19.200, total length 43.26 km) (‘the Project’) by 
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). In terms of condition stipulated in Letter of Award 
issued by NHAI, IRCON has incorporated your Company as its wholly-owned subsidiary and a 
Special Purpose Vehicle for execution of the Project.  

IrconLRHL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 25th March, 2022 and the 
concession period of the Project comprises of construction period of 730 days from the 
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date 
(COD).  

Further as per financial model the total Adjusted Project Bid Cost is Rs.1220.21 crore. Out of 
the total Adjusted Project Bid Cost, Rs.506.69 crore shall be reimbursed by NHAI during 
construction phase and balance Rs.713.52 crore will be receivable after construction in the form 
of Annuity that will be financed during construction by a mix of debt and equity in the ratio of 
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80:20. Accordingly, your Company will finance the cost of project of Rs.713.52 crore by way of 
debt of Rs.570.82 crore and equity/ quasi equity Rs.142.70 crore. The Bank of Baroda has 
sanctioned a term loan of Rs.570.82 crores. As on 31st March, 2025, Bank of Baroda has 
disbursed a loan of Rs.444.15 crores.  
 

Compliances and Disclosures 
 
Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum dated 10th 
July 2014 and 11th July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), CPSEs 
constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the DPE 
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on your 
company. 
 
Your Company has requested IRCON to grant exemption from compliance of the Annual MoU 
exercise for the financial year 2025-26, in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
Guidelines issued by the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and IRCON vide its letter dated 
20th February, 2025 has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU 
exercise for the financial year 2025-26 respectively.  
 
Acknowledgements 
 
I,on behalf of Board of Directors,express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and co-
operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors of 
the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. I express my 
deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not least, I 
would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous support. 
 
We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  

 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited 

 
 

            Sd/-  
         (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  

Chairman  
DIN: 07654014 

 
 

Date:  4th August, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 4th Annual Report of Ircon 

Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited (IrconLRHL) together with the Audited Financial 

Statements of the Company and Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended on March 

31, 2025. 

 

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S 

AFFAIRS: 

 

IrconLRHL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON) was 

incorporated on 24th December, 2021 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main 

object to carry the business of construction of Four/Six lane Greenfield Ludhiana - 

Rupnagar National Highway no. NH-205K from junction with NE-5 village near Manewal 

(Ludhiana) to junction with NH205 near Bheora Village (Rupnagar) including spur to 

Kharar with Ludhiana bypass (‘the Project’) under Bharatmala Pariyojana in the State of 

Punjab on Hybrid Annuity Mode (HAM): Package-3 (Design Ch. 66.440 to Design Ch. 

90.500 and spur to kharar Design Ch. 0.000 to Design Ch. 19.200, total length 43.26 km), 

in accordance with the Concession Agreement signed with National Highway Authority of 

India (NHAI) on 25th March, 2022. 
 

The financial closure has been achieved and NHAI has declared the appointed date from 

16th February, 2023 to commence construction. The concession period of the project is 

comprised of construction period of 730 days from the appointed date (i.e. 16th February, 

2023) and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation Date 

(COD). The Project is in execution phase. IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor 

in terms of technical bid submitted by IRCON to NHAI. 
 

 

Further as per financial model the total Adjusted Project Bid Cost is Rs.1220.21 crore. Out 

of the total Adjusted Project Bid Cost, Rs.506.69 crore shall be reimbursed by NHAI during 

construction phase and balance Rs.713.52 crore will be receivable after construction in the 

form of Annuity that will be financed during construction by a mix of debt and equity in the 

ratio of 80:20. Accordingly, your Company will finance the cost of project of Rs.713.52 

crore by way of debt of Rs.570.82 crore and equity Rs.142.70 crore.  
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The Bank of Baroda has sanctioned a term loan of Rs.570.82 crores. As on 31st March, 

2025, Bank of Baroda has disbursed a loan of Rs.444.15 crores.  

 

As on 31st March, 2025, a progress of 69.87% has been achieved. However, the 3rd 

milestone of 75% progress has not been achieved till the target date of 15th June, 2024 

due to force majeure resulting in delay in project. Now, it is expected that the 3rd milestone 

shall be achieved by 15th Aug 2025. 

 

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for 

the Financial Year 2024-25 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).  

 

Financial performance indicators as on 31st March, 2025: 

                                                                                                                          (Rs. in lakh) 

Sl. 

No. Particulars 

For the Year 

ended 

31.03.2025 

For the Year 

ended 

31.03.2024 

1.  Equity Share Capital 1,111.00 362.00 

2.  
Other Equity (includes Reserves and 

Surplus) 

10,792.44 5,581.06 

3.  Net Worth  11,903.44 5,943.06 

4.  Total Assets and Liabilities 61,927.51 36,278.62 

5.  Revenue from Operations 31,756.55 52,664.29 

6.  Other Income 21.46 14.39 

7.  Total Income (5) + (6) 31,778.01 52,678.68 

8.  Profit Before Tax  879.89 205.15 

9.  Profit After Tax 658.61 153.27 

10.  

Earnings Per Equity Share (on face 

value of Rs.10/- per share) 

(i) Basic 

(ii) Diluted  

 

 

10.61 

10.61 

 

 

5.51 

5.51 

 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 

 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2024-25. 
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As per the applicability of Ind AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 

head “Other Equity” in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs. 

796.44 lakh in Retained Earnings as on 31st March, 2025.  

 

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 
 

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 

March, 2025 is Rs.1450 lakh comprising of 1,45,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  

 

During the year, the Company has increased its Paid-up Capital from Rs. 362 lakh to Rs. 

1,111 lakh. At the end of the FY 2024-25, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company is and 

Rs. 1,111 lakh comprising of 111,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each. Ircon 

International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of IrconLRHL. 

 

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 

Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary 

(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialised form. 

 

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 

 

The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs. 26,523.25 

lakh for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. The negative cash flow is financed 

primarily from Bank Loan, Equity and Quasi Equity. 
 

 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies 

of the Company. 

 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 
 

Board of Directors: 

 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 

2024-25: 

 

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by 

the holding company (IRCON). 
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During the year under review, the holding Company (IRCON) had nominated Ms. Yamini 

Sahib [having DIN: 10686600], as the Part-time (Nominee) Director of your Company w.e.f. 

27th June, 2024. 

 

During the year under review, the holding company has nominated Shri Alin Roy 

Choudhury [having DIN: 10489550] vice Shri B. Mugunthan [having DIN:08517013] w.e.f. 

1st January, 2025. Further, Shri Alin Roy Choudhury [having DIN: 10489550] was ceased 

to be a nominee director of the Company w.e.f. 7th February, 2025. 

 

The Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and guidance & 

support given by Shri B. Mugunthan and Shri Alin Roy Choudhury during their tenure as 

Directors of the Company. 

 

As on 31st March, 2025, the total number of Directors is Four (4) including Chairman, 

nominated by IRCON. Details of Directors are as follows: 

 

Category, Name & 

Designation 

DIN Date of Appointment or Change in 

designation (during the year, if 

any) 

Shri Parag Verma, Chairman 05272169 - 

Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra, 

Director  

07654014 Appointed as Additional Part-time 

(Nominee) Director w.e.f. 1st 

February, 2024 

Regularized at the 3rd AGM held on 

12th August, 2024 

Shri B. Mugunthan, Director  08517013 Ceased to be the Director w.e.f. 31st 

December, 2024 

Shri Masood Ahmad 09008553 - 

Ms. Yamini Sahib 10686600 Appointed as Additional Part-time 

(Nominee) Director w.e.f. 27th June, 

2024 

Regularized at the 3rd AGM held on 

12th August, 2024 

Shri Alin Roy Choudhury  10489550 Appointed as Additional Director 

w.e.f. 1st January, 2025 and ceased 

as Director of the Company w.e.f. 7th 

February, 2025 
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After the closure of the Financial Year, during the year under review, your Company had 

re-designated Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra [having DIN: 07654014], as the Chairman (Part-

time Nominee) of your Company, vice Shri Parag Verma w.e.f. 1st May, 2025. Shri Parag 

Verma ceased to be the Director and Chairman of your Company consequent to 

withdrawal of nomination by the holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. 30th April, 2025. The 

holding Company has nominated Shri Surender Singh [having DIN: 09214484] as Part 

time Director in place of Shri Parag Verma w.e.f. 1st May, 2025.  

 

Shri Surender Singh was nominated by IRCON as Additional Part-time Director of the 

Company w.e.f. 1st May, 2025, who hold office upto the date of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 from Shri Surender Singh giving their candidatures for appointment 

as Directors, liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuring Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

Their appointment as Directors by Shareholders is included in the notice of ensuring 

AGM.  

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Yogesh 

Kumar Misra shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and 

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his 

reappointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice of the Annual 

General Meeting. 

 

None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 

 

Key Management Personnel (KMP): 

 

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel 

(KMP) of the Company during the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows: 

Category, Name & 

Designation 

Designation  Date of 

Appointment 

Date of 

Cessation  

Shri Mohammad Hannan Chief Financial Officer 28.06.2024 - 

Shri Jaswinder Singh Chief Executive Officer  28.03.2025 - 

   

After the closure of Financial Year, Shri Ankit Jain was nominated as Company Secretary 

of the Company w.e.f. 29th April, 2025. 
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8. BOARD MEETINGS: 

 

During the period under review, the Board met five (5) times on 10-05-2024, 28-06-2024, 

02-08-2024, 29-10-2024 and 31-01-2025. The interval between the Board Meetings were 

within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the 

Board Meetings is as follows: 

 

Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

10-05-2024 4 4 

28-06-2024 5 3 

02-08-2024 5 5 

29-10-2024 5 5 

31-01-2025 5 5 
 

  

The table below shows attendance of the Board Members at the Board Meetings held 

during the period under review and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting 

(AGM): 

Name of Directors Meeting Date Whether 

Attended 

last AGM  

Total 

Board 

Meeting 

entitled to 

attend 

during FY 

2024-25 

No. of 

Board 

Meetings 

attended 

during FY 

2024-25 

% of 

Attendan

ce 

1
0.

0
5

.2
02

4 

2
8.

0
6

.2
02

4 

0
2.

0
8

.2
02

4 

2
9.

1
0

.2
02

4 

3
1.

0
1

.2
02

5 

Shri Parag Verma  ×    Yes 5 4 80 

Shri Yogesh Kumar 

Misra  

     Yes 5 5 100 

Shri Masood Ahmad      Yes 5 5 100 

Shri B. Mugunthan      N

A 

Yes  4 4 100 

Ms. Yamini Sahib NA  ×    NA 4 3 80 

Shri Alin Roy 

Choudhury  

NA NA NA NA  NA 1 1 100 
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9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 

 

In terms of notification dated 5th July 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA) inter-alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014, an unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary is 

exempted from the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on its Board. Also, 

read with the provision of Section 177(1), 178(1) and rule-6 of the Companies (Meetings 

of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the requirement of constituting of the Board 

Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) is 

not applicable on such companies. 
 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 

read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle 

(SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance 

for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on 

IrconLRHL. 

 

IrconLRHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of 

IRCON, is, therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and 

the declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. Further, 

the constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the 

Board is also not applicable. 

 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

  The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  

31st March, 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 

2025 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 
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c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

 

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

10. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT’S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT: 

 

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and 

need no further explanation.  

 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any 

clarification/ explanation. 

 

11. STATUTORY AUDITOR: 

 

M/s. Rakhecha & Co., Chartered Accountants had been appointed as Statutory Auditors, 

for the Financial Year 2024-25 vide CAG letter dated 21st September, 2024. M/s. Rakhecha 

& Co., Chartered Accountants have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as 

required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

12. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  

 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 

2024-25 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report. CAG vide 

its letter dated 8th July, 2025 has conveyed not to conduct supplementary audit of the 

financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025. 
 

 

 

13. INTERNAL AUDITOR: 

 

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Singhal Sunil & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants, as Internal Auditors for the FY 2024-25, to conduct the Internal Audit of the 

Company in terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. During the year under 
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review, M/s. Singhal Sunil & Associates had conducted an internal audit on half-yearly 

basis and submitted their report to the Board of Directors. 

 

14. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with Companies (Cost 

Records and Audit Rules), 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records. 

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s R M Bansal & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost 

Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 for conducting the audit of cost 

records maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.  

 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

Pursuant to the provision of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 

Directors has appointed M/s. A.K. Rastogi & Associates, Company Secretary, as Secretarial 

Auditor of the Company for the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2024-25 do 

not contain any adverse observations and forms part of this Report. 

 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 

provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under 

review. 

17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

 

During the financial year, the related party transactions with the holding company (IRCON) 

were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms 

of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are 

enclosed to this report as Annexure – A. 

 

18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 

OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 

No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of 

the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report except as 

mentioned in this Annual Report. 
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19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 
 

 

A. Conservation of energy: - 

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy – NIL 

ii. the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy – Nil  

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment – NIL 

B. Technology absorption: - Not applicable  

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption; 

ii. the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 

development or import substitution; 

iii. in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 

from the beginning of the financial year) 

a. the details of technology imported; 

b. the year of import; 

c. whether the technology been fully absorbed; 

d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof; and 

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development. 

 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - Not applicable  

  i   Foreign Exchange Earned  

         ii  Foreign Exchange Outgo 

 

20. RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/ risk 

to the business of the Company. 

 

21. CREDIT RATING: 

 

During the FY 2024-25, CARE Ratings Limited has provided CARE AA; Stable rating for 

the long-term bank facilities of Rs. 570.82 Crore to your Company. 
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22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

 

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) were not applicable to the Company during the period under review. 

 

23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

As per Notification dated 05th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), 

Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 

IrconLRHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the 

remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), Rules, 2014 as a 

part of the Directors' Report. 

 

24. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

 

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the period under 

review. 

 

25. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 

 

During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its 

members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 

Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 

Adequate internal financial controls are exercised in the Company, keeping in view the size 

of operations of the Company. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting 

Standards for properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial 

statements. The Company has appointed an independent firm of Cost Accountants as 

Internal Auditors to ensure that the Company’s systems and practices are designed with 

adequate internal controls to match the size and nature of operations of the Company. The 

Internal Auditors conduct a half yearly audit and review, covering all areas of operation. The 

Reports of the Auditors are placed before the Board of Directors for discussion and 

necessary action. 
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27. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 

OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  

 

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 

status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review. 

 

28. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERNCE POLICY 

 

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 

Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 

registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crores (now 

Rs.250 Crore) and all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade 

Receivables Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the 

Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the 

competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department 

of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the 

compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the 

Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 15th July, 2023, to facilitate the 

financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of 

their payment before the due date. 

 

29. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  

The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 

on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 

 

During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to 

sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

The number of sexual harassment complaints received during the year  -                     0  
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The number of such complaints disposed off during the year                  -                      0  

 

The number of cases pending for more than ninety days                          -                     0 

 

30.  STATEMENT ON MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE 

The Company is complying with the provisions relating to the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961.   

 

31. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

 

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 

about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also 

provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the 

mechanism. Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and 

deputed from IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available 

on the website at , https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf. 

 

For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil 

Mechanism can be addressed to: 
 

Shri Masood Ahmad, Director 

Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited (IrconLRHL) 

Address: Ircon International Limited, 

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 

Phone No.: +91 -9560595062, Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org 

 

32. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 

 

No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 

the FY 2024-25, however, general RTI applications transferred from DPE were duly replied 

during the FY 2024-25, if any. 

 

33. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  

 

Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June 2015, sub-

sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to 

Directors of Government Company. 
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Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International 

Limited, all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The 

evaluation of these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined 

criteria in line with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance 

evaluation of Directors is not applicable on your company. 

 

34. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  

 

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company is in compliance with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  

 

35. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 

CODE, 2016 

 

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 

 

36. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 

 

Pursuant to the provision of MoU (Memorandum of Understanding) Guidelines for year 

2024-25 (Consolidated) dated 10th March, 2025 of Department of Public Enterprises 

(DPE), Companies, that are subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MoU with its 

holding company and holding company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from 

MoU for its subsidiary companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed 

by 31st of March of the base year. 

 

In line with the MoU Guidelines of DPE, IRCON vide its letter dated 20th February, 2025 

has granted exemption to the Company from entering into MoU for the financial year 2025-

26. 

 

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/ 

National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks, 

Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and 

look forward to their continued support in the future. 

 

We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all 

levels. Your Board of Directors also takes this opportunity to convey their gratitude and 
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sincere thanks for the cooperation and assistance received from the Shareholders during 

the period under report. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, 

solidarity, cooperation and support.  

 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited 

 

Sd/-  

                          (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  
                                                                                                                Chairman  

                                                                                                             DIN: 07654014 
 

 

Date: 4th August, 2025 

Place: New Delhi  
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ANNEXURE-A 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto during the period 
from 01st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows 

 

 
Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e. Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary to IrconLRHL and the salary, benefits 
(like PF, GIS, pension, related payments etc.) and other miscellaneous payment in nature if travelling/ 
ticket cost etc. paid to such deputed employees as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed on actual cost 
basis. 

For and on behalf of 
Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited 

 
 

            Sd/- 
          (Yogesh Kumar Misra)  

Chairman 
DIN: 07654014 

 
Date:  4th August, 2025 
Place: New Delhi 

     Sr. 
No. 

Nature of contracts or arrangements 
or transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

Salient terms 
of the 
Contracts or 
Arrangements 
or 
Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) 
of 
approva
l by the 
Board, 
if any: 

Amount 
paid as 

advance
s, if any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement 
(For Appointing Ircon International 
Limited as EPC Contractor for 
construction of Four/ Six lane 
Greenfield Ludhiana - Rupnagar 
National Highway no. NH-205K from 
junction with NE-5 village near 
Manewal (Ludhiana) to junction with 
NH205 near Bheora Village 
(Rupnagar) including spur to Kharar 
with Ludhiana bypass under 
Bharatmala Pariyojana in the State 
of Punjab on Hybrid Annuity Mode 
(HAM) 

730 days  from 
the appointed 
date and as 
extended by 
NHAI 
subsequently 

Agreement 
dated 02nd 
September, 
2022  
The Contract 
has been 
awarded to 
IRCON for a 
consideration 
of Rs.993.86  
crore + GST  

- NIL 

2.  
Lease Agreement   
(To take on lease the Office Premises 
of IRCON) 

1st April, 2023 
to 31st March, 
2025 

Lease 
Agreement 
executed on 5th 
April, 2023 for 
rent @ 
₹23,359/- p.m. 
plus GST. 

- NIL 

A
O

C-
2 
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A.K. RASTOGI &ASSOCIATES 
CompanySccrclarics 

SECRETARJAL AUDIT REPORT 

R-13/69,RAJNAGAR 
GHAZIABAD-201002 (U.P.) 
Mob:9650990414/9650990614 
anilrasto~i360911 gmail.colll 
ani I ra:.togi29 (l reditfmail.com 
wwv. .akrastogiassociates.inl 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31s• MARCH, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) a/the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration ojManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014} 

To, 

The Members, 
IRCON LUDHIANA RUPNAGAR IUGHWAY LIMlTED 
C-4, District Centre Saket, 
New Delhi-1I00t7 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate Practices by IRCON LUDHlANA 
RUPNAGAR IUGHWAY LIMlTED (CIN: U45309DL2021G0I391675) hereinafter 
called the 'Company' for the financial year ended on 31 s1 March 2025. Secretarial Audit 
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information 
provided by the Company. its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has. 
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 (Audit 

period) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and Returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 SI March 2025 

according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (,SCRA ') and the rules made 

thereunder; - NOT APPLICABLE 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; -

NOT APPLICABLE 
(Iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
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thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; - NOT APPLICABLE 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Excbange Board of India Act, 1992 (,SED. Act') are not applicable to the company 
as the shares of the company are not listed with stock exchanges during audit period. 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations,20 II; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based Employee Benefits and Sweat 
Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2021; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; 
(i) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company viz. 

1. Building and other construction workers (Regulation of Employment and conditions of 
service) Central Rules, 1998. 

2. The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 
3. The Disaster Management Act,2005 

The Compliance by the Company of appl icable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax 
laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the 
statutory auditor and the other designated professionals. 

We furtb er report that Compliances! processes! systems under other specific applicable 
laws (as applicable to the industry) are being relied on the basis of periodical certificate 
under internal compliance system submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(I) Secretarial Standards as amended from time to time issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. 

(Ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s) and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements), 2015 (Not applicable to 
the company during Audit period) 

(iii) OPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSE. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act. 
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Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following 
observations: 

1. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 
2013 as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited is exempted from the 
requirement of having Independent Directors as per Notification No. GSR 839(E) dated SIt 
July 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, hence the Company is not required to 
have Independent Directors on its Board. 

2. The Company, being a Government Company under Section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 
2013, as it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited is exempted from the 
requirement of having Independent Directors, therefore is also exemptedfrom constitution of 
the Board CommiNees viz. Audit CommiNee and Nomination &: Remuneration as per Section 
/77(/), /78(/) ofrhe Companies Ac/20J3. 

We further report that : 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with Non-Executive Directors as 
nominated by the Promoter Company viz. IRCON INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, as per the 
Articles of Association of the Company. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the Act. 

Generally, adequate notices were given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, 
Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and in some 
cases at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the Agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
at the meeting. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operat ions of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations andguidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period following special events occurred: 

• Increase in Paid up Share Capital and applicability of appointment of Key Managerial 
Personnel: The Board has allotted on 25.11.2024 74,90,000 (Seventy Four Lakhs and 
Ninety Thousand) Equity Shares of ~ 10/- (Rupees Ten) each to holding company viz. lreon 
International Limited Lakhs Only). As a result, the paid up capital of the Company was 
increased to ~ 11,11,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Eleven Lakhs Only). Hence threshold 
limit of ~ 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crorc) was breached making it mandatory for the 
Company for appointment of key managerial personnel as per section 203 oflhe Companies 
Act. 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Later, the same has been complied with by the 
Company. 
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Committee and Nomination & Remuneration as per Section 177(1), 178(1) of 
the Companies Act 2013. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with Non­
Executive Directors as nominated by the Promoter Company viz. IRCON 
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, as per the Articles of Association of the 
Company. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Generally, adequate notices were given to all the directors to schedule the 
Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance and in some cases at shorter notice, and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
Agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period following special events 
occurred: 

• Increase in Paid up Share Capital and applicability of appointment of Key 
Managerial Personnel: The Board has allotted on 25.11.2024 74,90,000 
(Seventy Four Lakhs and Ninety Thousand) Equity Shares on 101- (Rupees 
Ten) each to holding company viz. Ircon International Limited Lakhs Only). 
As a result, the paid up capital of the Company was increased to ~ 
11,11,00,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Eleven Lakhs Only). Hence threshold limit 
of ~ 10,00,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crore) was breached making it mandatory for 
the Company for appointment of key managerial personnel as per section 203 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Later, the same 
has been complied with by the Company. 
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We have relied on the information supplied and representation made by the 
Company and its officers for systems and mechanism followed by the 
Company for compliance under the applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to 
the Company. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 23.07.2025 

For A.K. Rastogi & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

tCSt Unique code No P2025UPI04900 
Peer Review Certificate No. 700612025 -

~,-" Ir 
(Sakshi Garg) 

Partner 
Mem. No.: A69597 

COP No.: 26728 
UDlN: A069597G00084 1 170 

Note: This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 
"Annexure A" and forms an integral part of this report. 

SI P.go 
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"Annexure A" 
To, 
The Members 
IRCON LUDHIANA RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, 
New Delhi- I100I7 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our Audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company and our report is not covering observations/comments/weaknesses 
already pointed out by the other Auditors. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws., rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 
of procedures on test basis and to give our opinion whether Company has proper Board­

processes and Compliance-mechanism in place or not. 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the company. 

Place: Ghaziabad 
Date: 23/07(2025 

For A.K. Rastogi & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

ICSI Unique code No Pl025UPI04900 
Peer Review Certificate No. 332212023 

'C~1 
( 

(Sakshi Garg) 
PARTNER 

Mem. No.: A69597; COP No.: 26728 
UDIN: A069597GOOO841170 

6l P'ge 
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~rY~' 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Audijor's Report 

4866/1, Harbans Singh Street, 
24, Ansari Road, Darya Ganj, 

New Defhi-110002 
Ph. :011·23288542, 43503994 

Website: www.camc.co.in 

To the Members of IRCON LUDHIANA RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IRCON LUDHIANA 
RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "Ind AS Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the 'Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair ;;ew in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS') and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31 , 2025 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash nows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Slatements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing ('SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accoun tants of India ("ICAI") together 
with the elhical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

l~~j~'~ '" ~,,"'~ "-.,,, 
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Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are Ihose mailers thai, in our professional judgment, were of most sign ificance 
in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Based on our 
checks and on the basis of information and explanation from the management we have 
determined thai there are no key audit matter to be communicated in our report. 

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures 
to Board's Report but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. The Board's Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's 
report. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibitity is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these tnd AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profiV loss and other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the tndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates Ihat are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate in tern al 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

~
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In preparing Ihe Ind AS financial stalements, the Managemenl and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wflelher the Ind AS financial stalements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes OUT opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, Ihey could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance wilh Standards on Auditing, specified under seclion 143(10) of 
Ihe Act we exercise professional judgmenl and mainlain professional skepticism Ihroughout Ihe 
audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatemenl of Ihe Ind AS financial stalements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• Oblain an underslanding of internal control relevant 10 the audit in order to design audit 
procedures thai are appropriate in Ihe circumstances. Under seclion 143(3)(i) ol lhe Acl we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls; 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

• Conclude on Ihe approprialeness of Board of Direclors' use of Ihe going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related 10 events or conditions that may cast significant doubl on Ihe CompanVs ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
~ . to draw attention in our audi tor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS 
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financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern; and 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disctosures, and whether the tnd AS financiat statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, retated safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit mailers. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a malter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legat and Regutatory Requirements 

1. As requ ired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (' the Order") issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matiers specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. 
A. As required by Secllon 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the infonmation and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
incomenoss), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows 

~
~C ," 'th by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

,<.:~ "0 
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial slalements comply wilh Ihe Ind AS 
specified under Seclion 133 of the Act 

e. Being a Governmenl Company pursuant to Ihe Notification No. GSR 463(E) daled 5 
June 2015 issued by the Minislry of Corporate Affairs, Governmenl of India, 
provisions of sub-seclion (2) of Section 164 of the Acl, are not applicable to the 
Company. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". OUf report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
inlernal financial controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements. 

g. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 
197(16) of the Act: 

Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable 
vide notification no. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central 
Government of India. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

a. The Company does not have any pending litigation which would have a material 
impact on its financial position. 

b. Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no malerial foreseeable 
losses on long term contracts that may require any provisioning. The company did 
not have any derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

c. During the year, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the Note 38 (vi) to the Ind AS financial statements, no fu nds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 
enti ty{ies) , including foreign entities (~Intermediaries"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

~~whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimale Beneficiaries") or provide any 

~
-~CCh5'g; antee, security or the like on behalf of the UltImate Beneficiaries. 

*~ -~ ~ 
Nz. '11 • 

<1 FRN.(j .,aN,f:! I)age 5 of 16 
.~ 0 

~Ol'::-:: __ .., ,,\.t 
~ 



32

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowtedge and belief, 
as disclosed in the Note 38 (vii) to the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have 
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entilies ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties 
(,Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures pertormed that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused 
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (il) of Rule 11 (e). as 
provided under (i) and (iil above, contain any material misstatement. 

e. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend during 
the period and until the date of this report, therefore, the reporting under this clause 
is not applicable. 

f. Based on our examination, which included lest checks, the Company has used 
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial 
year ended March 31 , 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not 
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit 
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements lor record 
retention. 

3, We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such 
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, in the "Annexure C" on the 
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: The 29lh day of April, 2025 

Page 6 of 16 

For RAKHECHA & CO. 
Chartered Accounta nts 

Firm's Registration No.: 002990N 
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Annexure A 
to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements of IRCON LUDHIANA 
RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

IReferred to In paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Report on Companies IAuditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of Section 143111) of the Companies Act, 20131'the Act') of 
the Company 

Ii) In res peel of the company's Property, Plant and Equipmenl and Intangible Assets: 

a) i) The company has maintained proper records showing lull particu lars, including 
quantitative details and situation of property, Plant & Equipment. 

ii) The company does not have any intangible assets: hence this clause is not 
applicable 10 Ihe company. 

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by Ihe 
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification. 

c) The company does not have any immovable property lather than properties where 
the company is the lessee and the lease agreement are duly executed in favour 
of Ihe lessee). Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 31i)( c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the company. 

d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipmenl lincluding Right 
of Use Assels) during the reporting year. 

e) According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been 
initiated or pending against company for holding any ben ami property under the 
Benami Transactions IProhibition) Act. 1988 and ru les made thereunder. 

Iii) (0) There is no inventory in the company during the reporting financia l year. According ly, 
clause 3Iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to Ihe Company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company. The company has not been sanctioned 

"",we ' capitallimils at any point of time during the year. According ly, clause 3I ii)(b) 

~.'\~~~ e ~ is not applicable to the Company. 
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(iii) The Company has nol made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to any 
companies, firms, limited fiabi lity partnerships or any other parties during the period 
under audit. In view of the above, the clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 
3(ii i)(0) and 3(iii)(~, of the Order are not applicable. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted 
any loans or given any guarantee or provided any security covered under section 185 and 
186 of Ihe Companies Act, 2013, so this paragraph of the order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(v) In our opinion, and according to the in formation and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been 
deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Company is in the business of Road & Infrastructure projects, cost records in 
respect of which have been mandated uls 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
together with Companies (Cost Accou nting Records) Rules, 2014. In our opinion 
and according to the information and explanations given to us , the necessary cost 
records yet to be maintained by the Company. The company has appointed Cost 
Auditor which have been mandated uls 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
together with Companies (Cost Accounting Records) Rules, 2014. 

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted I 
accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance. Income·Tax, 
Duly of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues have generally been regularly 
depcsited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in 
respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, 
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 
31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six monlhs from the dale they became 
payable. 

(b) According to the information & explanation given to us, th ere are no dues of 
Provident Fund, Employees' Siale Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Ta x, 
Custom Duly. Cess and other material statutory dues which have not been deposited 
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

Page 8 of 16 
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(viii) According to the information and explanations given 10 us, the Company does not 
have any transactions related to previously unrecorded income in the books of the 
account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 
3lviii) of Ihe Order is nol applicable 10 Ihe Company. 

lix) la) According 10 the information and explanations given 10 us, the Company has nol 
defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 10 
any lender. 

Ib) ACCOfding 10 the infonmation and explanalions given 10 us and on Ihe basis of our audil 
procedures, we report Ihalthe Company has nol been declared wilful defauller by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

Ic) According 10 Ihe informalion and explanalions given 10 us by Ihe managemenl, Ihe 
Company has utilized Ihe money oblained by way of lerm loans during Ihe year lor Ihe 
purposes for which Ihey were oblained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of Ihe financial statements of the 
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term bas is have been used for 
long-Ierm purposes by Ihe company. 

Ie) According 10 Ihe informalion and explanalions given 10 us and on an overall 
exam ina lion of Ihe financial slalemenls of Ihe company, we reporllhallhe Company 
does not have any subsidiary or does not have any ownership interest in any other 
enlily. Accordingly, reporling under clause 3Iix)(e) of Ihe Order is nol applicable. 

(Q According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed 
by us, we report that the Company does nol have any subsidiary or does nol have 
any ownership interest in any other entity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3lix)(Q of Ihe Order is nol applicable. 

Ix) la) The Company has nol raised any money by way of inilial public offer or furlher public offer 
lincluding debt inslrumenls), during Ihe year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3Ix)(a) 
of Ihe Order is nol applicable 10 the Company. 

Ib) According 10 Ihe informalion and explanalions given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
privale placemenl of shares or fully, partly, or optionally convertible debenlures during the 
year. Hence, Ihe provisions slaled in paragraph 3Ix)(b) of Ihe Order are nol applicable 10 
Ihe Company. The company has made righl issue of equity shares during Ihe reporti ng 
financial year and monies received have been, prima facie, applied by the company for 
the purpose for which Ihey were raised. 

Page 9 of 16 
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(xi) (a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in tndia, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we report that no malerial fraud by the Company 
nor on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and based 
on our examination of the records of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of 
section 143 of the Act has been fited in Form ADT - 4 as prescnbed under rute 13 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Centrat Government of tndia, dunng 
the year and up to the date of this repert. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given 10 us including the representation 
made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower comptaints 
received by the Company during the year. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Acccrdingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 
3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not appticable to the Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have 
been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audi t system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the intemat audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till dale, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
him and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 
to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reperting under ctause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the 
Order is not appticable. 

(b ) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in 
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

(x'iiii) re has been no resignalion of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 

~iit~ o. under ctause 3(xviii) of th::::~i:;:: applicable to the Company. 
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ralios , ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, wh ich causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
Ihe dale of balance sheel as and when Ihey fatt due wilhin a period of one year from Ihe 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of Ihe Company. We further slale Ihal our reporling is based on Ihe facls up 10 Ihe 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance thai all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dale, will get 
discharged by Ihe Company as and when they fatt due. 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfil the 
cnleria as speCified under seclion 135(1) of Ihe Acl read wilh Ihe Companies (Corporale 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of 
Ihe Order is nol applicable 10 Ihe Company. 

(xxi) The company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and 
therefore, company has not prepared consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xxi) of Ihe Order is nol applicable 10 Ihe Company. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dale: The 29" day of April , 2025 
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For RAKHECHA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Regislralion No.: 002990N 

ANIL KUMAR 
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Annexure B 
to the Independent Audilor's Report on the Ind AS Financial Statemenls ollRCON LUDHIANA 
RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(~ under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

We have audited Ihe internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of 
Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited ("the Company') as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction 
wi th our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial 
reporting cnteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrols Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company's policies , the safeguarding of its assets , the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls wi th 
reference to Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls with reference 
to 100 AS financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether edequate intemal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements were 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Page 12 of 16 
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Our audit invotves perlorming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and lesting and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of in ternal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures setected depend on the auditor's judgement, inctuding the assessment of the 
nsks of materiat misstatement of the tnd AS financiat statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We betieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements. 

Meaning of tnternat Financiat Controts with Reference to tnd AS Financiat Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements inctude those poticies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that , in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonabte assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of tnd AS financiat statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting pnnciptes, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
tnd AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

Because of the inherent timitations of intemat financiat controls with reference to tnd AS financiat 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thai the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Page 13 of 16 
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Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemal financial controls with reference to 
Ind AS Financial Statements and such intemal financial controls with reference to Ind AS 
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on Ihe criteria for 
internal financial control with reference to Ind AS Financial Statements established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: The 29" day of April , 2025 

Page 14 or L6 

For RAKHECHA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 002990N 
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Annexure C 
10 the Independenl Audilor's Report on Ihe Ind AS Financial Sialemenis of IRCON LUDHIANA 
RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY LIMITED for Ihe year ended 31" March, 2025 

(Referred 10 in paragraph 3 under 'Report on Olher Legal and Regulalory Requiremenls ' section of our 
report of even dale) 
SI. No. Directions Action Taken Impact on 

financial 
statement 

1 Whelher the Company has syslem Based on Ihe audil procedures Nil 
in place to process all the carried out and as per the 
accounting transactions through IT information and explanations given 
system? If yes, the implications of to us, no accounting transactions 
processing of accounting have been processed/carried 
Iransaclions oulside IT syslem on oulside Ihe IT syslem. Accordingly, 

2 

the integrity of the accounts along there are no implications on the 
with the financial implications, jf integrity of the accounts. 
any, may be slaled. 

Whether there is any restructuring 
of an existing loan or cases of 
waiverlwrile off of debls! loansl 
interest elc. made by a lender to the 
company due to the company's 
inability 10 repay Ihe loan? If yes, 
Ihe financial impacl may be slaled. 
Whether such cases are properly 
accounled for? "(In case, lender is 
a government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for 
statutory audilor of lender 
company)" 

The Company has SAP syslem 10 
process all Ihe accounting 
transactions and used for 
preparation of the financial 
accounts. 

Based on Ihe audil procedures Nil 
earned oul and as per Ihe 
information and explanations given 
to us, there was no restructuring of 
existing loans or cases of 
waiverlwrile off of deblsl loansl 
inleresl elc. made by Ihe lender 10 
the company due to the company's 
inability to repay the loan. 

Page ISor l 6 
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51. No. Directions 

3 Whether funds (granls/subsidy 
etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes 
from Central/State Governments or 
its agencies were prope~y 
accounled for/utilized as per ils 
term and conditions? list the cases 
of deviation. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: The 29" day of April, 2025 

Action Taken Impact on 
financial 
statement 

Based on the audit procedures Nil 
carried out and as per the 
information and explanations given 
10 us, No fund (grants/subsidy etc.) 
has been received or receivable for 
specific schemes 
from Central/State Governments or 
its agencies during the reporting 
financial year. 
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For RAKHECHA & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No.: 002990N 

, 

ANIL KUMAR 
Partner 

Membership NO.:518544 
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Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Umlted 
CIN:..lJ45309DLlD21GOI391675 
Balance Sheet as at 31st Mlrch 2<125 

,. 
Anetl 

(a) Property, PIaot ano:l EQUIPI'IIOOI 
ib) Deferred Tax; Assets (nel) 

(e) rl1ancial Asse\$ 

(i) ()I;hef rl/l¥lClai Assets 
0Iher Non-CIJnenI,A:sets 

, Inuft 
ta) F~ Assets 

(i) Trade RecaNabIas 
(I' Cash aoo Cash Etjlnvaleots 
(I') loa1s 
rlY) Orher r~aI,A:selS 

I T 01); AsselS (NaI) 

I. , 

, 
" Uabilitit, 

(a) FnanaaI lJidbes 

H~ 
M Lease Uabilil.es 
(,ii) TI3de Pmbies 
·lOtai outst~ 1"IdN'!g BJes 01 mlCfO i!lf\1Cfp"15&S and gnillll enlefl:Wlse5 
·lOtai QlJISIar61g ooes 01 credllO"S ollie< ltIan of mlCfO en~SI.!$ and 
small entel"pl'lSe$ 
0eIerr&d Tao I.J.DitIlS {nil} 

L1ablltlll 
3 

" (a) FnaocraIlJabihtes 
() Le_lJabiIrtIes 
() Traoe Payacles 
- 1OtaI ouI:\IandirIg wes of mlCfO ~ ard ~ ootefJ;Wises 
-Iota! ooIstancing I2IeS 01 crediIors ollie< than 0I1I"IICm OOll!fPIl$BS aoo 
smillenll:fprise$ 

(Iii) Otllef FiniWlCial UablhbM 
(b) O!her C~rrer\I Laabilfles 
(el C~rrenl T a. LiabiM,es (Net) , UablUtili 

Thl KtOmpanying nOlI1 a~ an pan ofthll "n ... cl~ nlltmenll. 

Not, 

3 

, 

6 
6.' 

" 
63 
1 , 

9 
10 

" 

• 
12 

1<' 
1<, 

'" 13 

" 

l to 41 

A~---
Ankll: Jain 

ComPlny Sec:rewy 
(ACS No A35C6J) 

44.415.00 

16' 
2.66136 

For Ind on behalf oIth. 

000 

25,295 42 

5,152 87 
21565 

O~ 

~5.41 

'f~~ 
Ylmlnl Sahib 

Director 
(OIN:·1D1i866(lQ) 

~ -Moh.mlMd H.annan 
Chltf FIn.nel. omCif 

• 

Ma Ahm.ld ,.,« 
(OIN :~900855l) 

~ 
Chief E:.ecutlve otIIcer 



44

Ireon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited 
C IN: °U45309 DL2021 GO 1391675 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st Mareh 2025 
All amounts in IndW'l Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise $18100) 

Particulars Note 

Income 
Revenue from operations 15 
Other ilcome 16 
Total Income fA) 

Expenses 
Pr01&Cl Expenses 17 
Employee ber'lefits expenses 16 
filaru Costs 19 
Depreciation and amortization experlses 3 
Otf1er expenses 2Q 
Tolalexpenses IB) 

Profrtllloss) before tax (A-B) 
Tax expenses: 4 
Currerlt tall 
• For the yee. 
• For eaIIIer yeaI'! 
Deferred tax (MIt) 

Profltl(loll) lor the period 
Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) 

A) Items that win not be redassified to profit or loss 
Income tax relating to lIems!hal WII not be reclassified 10 profit or loss 

B) Items thai wiU be reclassified to profit or loss 
Income tax: relU1g 10 Items lhat wil be reclassified 10 profit or loss 

Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year (net of tax) 
Total Comprehensive income/(Ioss) for the year 

Earning, ptr equity 'hare (Face V.lue Per Equity Share Rs. 10) 14 
Basic (Irl Rs.) 
Diluted In Rs.) .. SummlllY 01 maten.1 accounting poliCies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

2 
31041 

As per oor report of even date attached 
For Rakhecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Regi'tration.No. : ~02990li ,-' 

, f! (. , [~ t\. 

m,V \i,. 'N'~~" 
An~~mar \~ci,,~' _ .~~ 
Partner ~--
ICAI Membership No. : 518544 
UDIN, 2..>5'18,44 6MI<S(,K '1-061 

Place. New Delhi 
Dale 29.04.2025 

Ankil J.in 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No. AJ5053) 

For the year ended 311t For the year ended 311t 
March 2025 March 2024 

31,756.55 52.664.29 
21.46 14.39 

31.178.01 52,671.68 

28,098.29 51.697.80 
n.15 43.44 

2,634.69 617.14 
0.18 0 

87.67 115.15 
30,898.18 52,473.53 

879.13 2Q5.15 

221.40 51.87 
(0.23) 0 

0.05 0.01 
221.22 51.88 

658.61 153.27 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

651.61 153.27 

10.61 5.51 
10.61 5.51 

FOf' and on behalf olthe Board of Director. 

~ 
Vamlni Sahib 

Director 
(DIN:.10686600) 

-Co 
Mohammad Hannan 

Chief Financial Officer 

~ 
Jaswlnder Singh 

Chief Executive Officer 
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Cnh Flow St3tement for the yur ended 31st March 2025 

• , ... , , '~81") 

A.' 

~r~rrt_ before tax 
10,· 

!nterestlncome 
!nterest Expenses 
loss on disposal of assets 
8ad Oe~s 
~ax lor _the Earlier Years 

prorlt before wonting capital changes 
in working capital: 

I 1 in other nOrl-current ~abifty 
I in other currerl! fin8ncialliabi~ !ies 

I in Curren! Trade Payables 
I in other nOrl-currenl linancial liabilities 
I in other current liability 
I in noo<:urrenl provisions , , in current provisions 

In trade receIVables 
inventories 
non currenl rlflancialloans 
loans & current and non C\.Irren! linaooal assets 
omerNo~urrenta~~ 

other current a~~ 
Current tax a~ts i '"",me T, 

B. Cash floWi from irlvesting Ictivities 
Purchase of Plant, Property and Equipmen~ 
Interest II'IC0me 

IN" ",hi ; 

C. Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from borrowings 
Proceeds from lresh issue of share capital 
Share Issue eJqlE!nse5 

~~~~~;;;Y.om I , """" ; • ; 

N_el incrusel{decrenl) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equrvalents at the begilrling of the period 

For the year For the yur ended 31st 
March 2025 March 2024 

879.83 205.15 

0.18 

,,;;::1 i:;;: 
· · 
· · 
· · 

803.51 

· · 

.~ , :;:~:, 239.30 
7,171.67 

· · 
132.661 439.44 

· · 
· · 

5.752.87 ",mA7' 
· · 

· 

""".'" 12','" '" 
· · 

'''''',<'" 14,0>< '" 
· 

=:Ij ~ 
I~~I · 

14.07 

2.a: 14.01 

24,715.00 19,700.00 
749.00 

j,;~ .,,~;; 

~ 
,353.00 
, 

(A+8+C) 867.1 1 2OJ.n 
215.65 11 .88 
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Noles: 
1. Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow 
2. The Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Ind AS.7 'Statement of Cash Flow' notified under 

- With balks in current account 

4. Reconciliation of Liabilities arisinq from financinq activities 
A 131032025 .. 
Particulars 
OpeninA balances 
Cash lIows: 
- Repayments 
- Interest Accrued 
• Proceeds 
Closln balances 

A t3103202" .. 
Particulars 
ODeninA balances 
Cash flows : 
- Repayments 
- Interest Accrued 
• Proceeds 
Closing balances 

Summary of material accounting policies 2 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part ofthe financial statements. 3 to 41 

As per our report of even date attached 
For Rakhecha & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 00299Q 

, (((,&t 
Partner "_~~y-t, 
ICAI Memberthip No. : 518~ ;- • 
UDIN, 'J.!;.,I &>4 4 /3~OM 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29.04.2025 

Anki! Jain 
Company Secretary 
(ACS No. A35053) 

310.76 15.65 

loan From Bank Interest on loan 
19.700.00 4.38 

· /2.629.24) 
· 2.634.89 

24,715.00 · 
44 "15.00 10.03 

loan From Bank Interest on loan 

· · 

· (612.76) 
617.14 

19700.00 · 
19700.00 "-38 

For and on behalf of the Boar 

Yaminl Sahib 
Director 

(DIN:.10686600) 

~ -Mohammad Hannan 
Chief Financial OffIcer 

Masoo 
Dlr etor 

(DIN:-09008553) 

Ja~ 
Chief Executive Officer 
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Ircon ludhiana Rupnagar Highway limited 
CIN: ·U453090 L2021 GOl39167 5 
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All Bmounts in IndI8tJ Rupees LaIlhs lIIIIess othetwlSe~'~I.~od)",,-____ _ 

(I) EItShC ' j ~qlllty: Ire ;'Plt. 
PlrtlculIr& Amount #-;:;; 
Bllince II It 011t April, 2023 5.00 
Chanaes., eooltv share ~ during the year 357.00 
BII.nce " at 31st March 2024 36.00 
a.r,nce" at 01st April, 2024 36.00 
Chinles III eooltv share caotal durina tile Year 749.00 
Billnee" It 311t M.rch 2025 1111.00 

(b ) Othar Eaulty'_ 
Partlculal'$ Ruervu' 

Sumlul 
RetJ ln~ 

E.rnioQI 
B.I.nca" at 011t April, 2023 (0.07) 
ProHI for the year 153.27 
Other Comprehel"lSlVe iIcane · 
Total Comprthenlive Income for the year 153.27 
Share Issua expenses (14.14) 
Addition In Quasi Eouitv · 
Eblanca II at 31st MIlCh 2024 13Ue 

Balance .. It 1st April 2024 139.05 
T alai proft for the penod 658,61 
Other comprel1ensive income fOl' the penod · 
Tolal comprehensive Income for the year 656.61 
Shilfe Issue expenses (123) 
AdditIOO fI OiJasl EqUity · 
Balanc .... t 31st MaKh 2025 796.44 .. 
SUlIVNry of matenal.ceountin9 poliCies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral palt of the financial statementt. 

As per CU' repol1 of ewn dale atIlChed 
For Rakhec:ha & Co. 

- -.-." 

~~I~~;~ r:;~':!'«i~~ 
." m" _ 9~~ 
Partn., '" A 
ICAI Membership No. : 518~-..:.-:.:/ 
UOIN, J. ')'''' 85''44 81'1I<S£'1( Mab 

Place. New Delhi 
Date: 29.04.2025 

Ankh Jain 
Company Secretary 

(ACS No. A3S0$3) 

Other Comprehensive 
Income 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

· , 
31041 

Quasi equity 

89.00 

· 
· 
· 
· 

5.353.00 
5,442.00 

5,442.00 

· 
· 
· 
· 

~554.00 
9996.00 

Total 
Amount 

88.93 
15327 

153.27 
(14.14) 

5.353.00 
5581.06 

5,581.(16 
658.61 

. 
658.61 
(1.23) 

4;;:~ 
10792.44 

For OInd on behOiIf of the Board of 

1~ 
Yamlnl Sahib 

Director 
(DIN:.10686600) 

~ -. 
Mohammad Hanl'lln 

Chief Financial Officer 

Mas Ahmad 
O' ector 

(DlN:.()9Q08553) 

,,~ 
Chief u.eculiwe Officer 
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Summary of Corporate Infonnation & Material Accounting Policies for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025 

1. Corporate Information 

Ircon ludhlana Rupnagar Highway Umited (lhe "Companyj is domiciled and incorporated in todia al'ld is a wholly oooed subsidiary 
of Ircon International umited (IRCON), public sedor construction company dooliciled in India. The Company (GIN. 
U45309DL2021GOI391675) is incorporated under the provisIOns of the Companies Ad, 2013 applicable in India. 

The Company came Inlo existence when IRCON was awarded the work of upgradation & Construdion of fourlslx lane greenfield 
Ludhiana-Rupnagar National highway no NH-205K from junction with NE-5 viUage near Manewal (l udhiafla) to junction Wth NH-
205 near Bheora Vdlage (Rupnagar) Including spur to Kh..-ar with ludtQIa bypass under Bharatmala P;:w;yojana in the State of 
Punjab on HytlOO Annuity Mode; Pado:age-3 (Design Ch.66.44D to Design Ch.90.SOO CI'Id spur to kharar Design Ch. Under Hybrid 
Annuity Model (HAM}.The ConcesSIOn pe1iod is 15 years from Commercial Operahon Date (COO) and Construction period Is 730 
days from Appointed Dale. The registered office of the company is located at C-4 , District Centre, Sake!, New Delhi- 110017. 

The financial statements are approved lor ISsue by !he oompany's Boaro 01 DIrectors If! the. meetilg held on 29.04.2025 

2. Material accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

L Statement of compliance 
The FlIlanciai Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis lollowing acatIal system of accounting 
and III accordance with accounting prinCIpleS genenlly ao:epted in loeIia, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under section 133 of the Companies Ad 2013 read togethef \'!1th Rlie 3 of the Compooies (Indian Acx:ounMg Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended from lime to lime) and presentation requirements of Oivision II of Schedule III to the Companies Ad.. 
2013, (Ind AS compliant ScheOOle III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

ii. Basis of measurement 

The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenbon except for the foIo'Ning assets and liabilities 
which have been measured at fair value: 

• Certarl flflsnciaI assets and Mabihties measured at fair value. 

III. Functional and Presentation Currency 
These Financial Statements are presented In Indian Rupees (INR) v.ilich is the Company's lunctional currency. All amounts have 
been rounded 10 the nearest lakhs up 10 \'0\() decimals except for per share data, unless oIhefv..ise slated. 

2.2. Summary of material accounting policies 

A summary oIlhe material accounting policies applied in the prepal'"a6on of the financial statements are as given below. These 
aa::oonling (Xlicies have been applied conSistently to al periods presented in the financial statemenls. 

2.2.1. Current and non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets lor processilg aoellheir realisation in cash and cash equivalents. the 
Company has determined twelve months as Ilsoperalmg cycle for !he purpose of clasSIfication of Its assets and liabilities as current 
and non~urrent in the balance sheet. 

Deferred lax assets and iabilities are dassifIed as non-<:urrenl assets and Mabilities. 
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2.2.2. Property, plant and equipment 

Property. plant al'ld equipment are initially stated at their cost. 
The cost of an Kem of property. plant and equipment Indudes: 

(a) its purchase price, includi'lg import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deduding trade discoonls and rebates; 
(b) Cost di"ect!y attributable to the acqulsiboo of the asset ....t1ich iflQJrred in tmging the asset to the location and conOlllon 
necessary for it to be capable of operallng in the mamer intended by management 

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at oosl net of accvmulated depreciation cYld acctJmulated impcWment 
losses, if any. Subsequent costs life included in the assets earying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
ooly when it is probable that future economic benefils associated 'Nith the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation on ~, plant and equipment is provided on straight ~ne basis over the esllmated usefulll'leS of the assets as 
spedfied uOOer part C of schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 and disclosed n the notes to accounts. The residual values is 
not more than 5% of the original cosI of assets. 

Property ptant and equipment acqui"ed dunng the period, indivldualy costing up to ~5OOOi- we fuly dep"eciated, by keeping Re. 
, as token value for idenllficaboo However, Mobile phones PrOVIded 10 employees we chcrged 10 statemenl of profit and loss 
iTespective of its value. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year--end. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by oomparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are Indueled in profit or loss 
within other gains/(Iosses). 

2.2.3. Impairment of non-financial assets 
AI each reporting dale, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its f'\OIl-finandal assets to determi'le whether there is 
any indication of impairment. If any such indicatIOn eXists. the recoverable amount of the asset is esbmated in order to determine 
the extent of the impairment loss (If any). 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and l oss is measured 
by the amount by wtllch the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. 

2.2.4. Revenue RecognItion 
The Company derives revenues primarily from the Service Concession Arrangement comprising the construction and operation 8. 
maintenance seNices pertaining to an infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid Annuity Mode. 

L Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement 

The Company's contracts YIIth the Customers fOf the construction and operation 8. maintenance services under the Service 
Concess!on Arrangement (SCA) are accounted !of as a single performance obligation as conlract IS negotiated as a package 
with a single commerdal objective and involves complex integration of construction and maintenance services. 

Revenue is recognised over the time using input method (l.e., percentage-of-complelion method) which is consistent with the 
transfer of control to the customer because there is a dlrecl relationship between the Company's elfort (I.e., cost incurred) and 
the transfer of service 10 the customer. Under Input method , contract revenue is recognized as revenue by reference to the 
stage of complellon as at the reporting date. The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred 
to-date, to the total estimated cost attnbulable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to 
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the costs inCtJrred n 
sallslying the perloonance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs inCtJrred until such time 

i, 
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that ~ can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A cumulative catch-up adjustment would be 
recognized in the period in which the entity IS able to reasonably measure its progress. Changes 10 total estimated cootract 
costs, if any, are recognised in the period in which they are determined as assessed at the contract leYel. 

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total, in the penod the losses are 
Identified. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and is adjusted for variable 
considerations. Variability in the transactioo price arises primarily due to liquidated damages, price variation dauses, incentives, 
change in law etc. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reyersal 
in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized 
on Yariable consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance 
obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the cuslomer pays consideration or before 
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional. The portion of the payments 
retained by the customer unlil final contract settlement is not considered a signifICant financing component since it is usually 
intended to provide customer with a form of security lor Company's remaining performance as specified under the contract, 
v.tlich is consistent \'lith the industry practice. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time 
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivable are recognised Initially at the transaction price as they 
do not contain signiflCaflt financing components. The Company hold the trade receivable v.;th the objective of collecting the 
contractual cash fIo'NS and therefore measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method 
less loss allowance. 

Contraclliabitrties 
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liabiMy is 
recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is ea~ier). Contract liabilities are recognised as 
revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers) 

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another 
financial asset from or al the direction of the grantor ("NHAI") for the construction services and Operation & Maintenance 
services. 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized ccst using the Effective Interest Rats 
(EIR) method. 

ii. Other income 

Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

All other income IS accounted on accrual basis when no signifICant uncertainty exists regarding the amount that will be received. 
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2.2.5. Borrowing cost 
BorroWIng costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs In connection with the borroWing of funds and are 
charged to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred except when ~ meEts the cn teria lor capitalisa\lon 
as part of qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23. 

2.2.6. Taxes 

Tax expense comprises current tax afld deferred Income tax. 

i. Current income Tax 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the penod and is computed in accordance with 
relevant tax regulations. 

Current Income tax IS recognized in statement of profit and loss. Management periodically evaluates posillons laken in the ta)( 
retums with respect to SitUationS in which applicable tax regulations are subject 10 interpretation and establishes prOVISions 
.,mere appropriate. 

Current lax assets and tax liabilities are offset where Ihe entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to 
settle on a net baSIS. or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax LS provided using tile liabLlity method on temporary differences be\'oNeen the tax bases of assels and liabilities and 
theLf carrymg amounts lor financial reporting purposes at the reporllflg date. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficlenttaxabie pl'ofit 'Nitl be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assel to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reponmg date alld are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profit WID allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred 101)( assets and liabilities are offset when there IS a legally enforceable righl to offset currenllax assets and liabilities 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

2.2.7. Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salanes and wages, short term compensated absences. and Performance Related Pay (PRP) falling 
due wholy ""thin twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short·term employee benefits and undiscounted 
amount of such benefits are expensed Ln the statement of profi t alld loss in in the period in which the employee renders the 
related services. 

ii. Post·employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the Company are on deputation from lreon International Umlled, Holdmg Company. The post employee 
benefits & other long term employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund. post· rebrement medLcal facLlity, pension, leave 
encashment and leave travel ooncession. 

As per arrangement with the Ircon International Limited. Holding Company. the cost in relation to post employee & other long 
term Employee Benefits will be reimbursed to the holding Company 00 Ihe basis of fixed contribution based on basic pay and 
dearness allowance for !he penod of services rendered in the Company. 
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The Company's liability with respect to the kmg term employee benefit IS limlled to the extent of fixed contribution to be paid to 
the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liabi~ty wiU be the responsibility of holding company. 

The Contractual employees of the Company are nol eligible for post employee benefits & other long term employee benefits. 

2.2.8. Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of presentatioo In the statement of cash nows, cash and cash equivalents indudes unrestricted cash aoo short· 
tenn deposits with original maturities of three months and less thai are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which 
are subject to an insignibll risk of change in value. 

2.2.9. Contingent liabilities & conllngent assets 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingenillabilities are disclosed when there IS a possible obligation Of present obligations that may bul probably will not, 
require an outllow of resources embodYing eoonomic benefits Of the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there IS possible obligation or a present obligation In respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote, no prOVlSKlfl Of disclosure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 10 reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent assets 
Cootingent assets are not recognized though are dlsdosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

2.2.10. Leases 
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract IS, or contains, a lease. That is, If the contract conveys the 
nght to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

Short Term leases 

The company has etected not to recognise ROU and lease liabilities for short term leases that have a lease term of twetve 
months or less. The company recognises lease payments associated With these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. 

2.2.11. financlal lnstruments 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial habllilles when ~ becomes a party 10 the contractual provisionS of the 
instrument. 

i. finlncill assets 

.) Initi.1 recognition and measurement 
All financial assets (exduding trade receivables wtuch do 001 contain a significant financing component. being measured at 
transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisitlon 01 
financial asset. Transaction costs directty attributable to the acquisl lJon of finwu;aal assets carried at fair value through profit Of 

loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 
Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business modet for managing the asset and the cash 
now .. of the asset. The Company dassifies its financial asset as: 

~
_,,,e,- '(' 

<-" ~ ~ 
• ~J • 
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Financial asset. at amortised cost 
After inilial measurement, the financial assets that are held for collection 01 contractual cash flows where those cash flow 
represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Interest income from these financial assets is included In other Income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The ComparlY applies the expected credit loss (ECl) model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at 
amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual nghts to receive cash or other financial asset. 
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows 'simplified approach' and measures the loss allowance at an 
amount equal to ~Ierime eqJected credll losses. 

For recognition of impairment loss on olher financial assets and risk exposure, Ihe Company determines that whether there 
has been a significant Increase in the credit risk since iOitial recogOilion. If credit risk has nol increased signlficanUy. 12-monlh 
ECl is used to provide for Impairmenlloss. 

c) Oerecognition of financial asset. 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the finanCial asset expire Of it 
transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for derecognilion under 100 AS 109. 

The difference belween the carrying amounl and the amount of consideration received I receivable is recogmsed 1"1 the 
statemeol of profit and loss. 

II. Financial liabilities 

. ) Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case 01 borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction 
costs. 

The Company's finarlcialliabi lities Include borro'Nings. trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financialliabitltles depends on their dassificatlon. as described below: 

Financialliabilitie. at amortized cost 

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other finaocial ~abllitles are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) melhOO. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees Of costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finarlce costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

c) Oereeognition of financialli.bllit ies 

A financial liability (or a part of a financialliabihty) is derecognlzed from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obhgation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

-~~ 

~.~0~~ 
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2.2.12. Fair value measurement 
The company measures 6nancial instruments at fair value at each reporting perIOd. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are dlsdosed in the financial statements. Such assets and liabilities 
are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the lair value 
measurement Is unobservable) of fair value hierarchy. 

The lair value of an asset Of a liability is measured using the assumptions that marKet participants would use when pricing the 
asset or ~ability , assuming that marKet participants act in their economiC best interest. 

2,2.13. Earnings Per Share 
In determinmg basic earnings per share, the company considers the net prom attnbutable to eqU11y shareholders. The number 
of shares used in computing basic eamings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstandillQ dunng the penod. 

In detennlning diluted eamings per share, the net profit attnbutable to eqUiIy shareholders and weighted average number of 
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted lor the effect of all dilutlVe potential equily shares. 

2.2.14. Prior Period Adjustment 
Errors I omissicos discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and adjusted during the 
ClJfTent year, if all such errors and omissions m aggregate does I"IOt exceed 0.50% of total operating revenue as per last audited 
financial statement of the Company. 

2.2.15. Significant accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation 01 Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, accoun~ng estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncenalnly 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected In fulure periods. 

This note provides an overview 01 the areas thai involved a higher degree of judgemenl Of compleXity, and of items which are 
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumpticos turning out to be different than those originally assessed. 

Significant areas of estimation and judgements as stated in the respective accounting policies that have the most significant 
effect on the financial statements are as follows 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

Trade receivables do no! carry interest and are slated althelr nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for 
estimated irreooverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable's batances and historical experiences. Individual trade 
receivables are written off when management deems not be coIectibie. 

ii. Contingencies 

In the nOfmai course of business, contingent liabilities may anse from litigation and other daims against the company. There 
are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all aVailable lacts and circumstances are I"IOt probable 
of payment Of dlfficuK to quanllly reliably and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and diSClosed in notes 
Although there can be no assorance 01 the final OtJtcome of legal proceedings In 'MIlCh the company is Involved. it is I"IOt 
expected that such contingencies will have material effect co its financial position of probability. 
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iii. Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provision for finalcial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected Joss rates. The 
company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecling the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the 
company's past history, credit risk, existing market conditioos as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting 
period. 

iv. Taxes 

Uncertainties exist with respedto Ihe interpretation 01 comple. tal: regulations, changes in tax laws. and the amount and timing 
olluMe taxable income. Given the nalure of business differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions 
made. or future changes to such assumptions, could necessnate future adjustments that wilt impact the current and deferred 
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based 
on reasooable estimates. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized fO( unused la. losses to the extent that il is probable thai taxable pro~t will be available 
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement Is required to determine the amount of deferred 
tax assets that can be recognised. based upon the ~kely liming and the level of future taxable prolils together with future lax 
planning strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Determining Ihe 
recoverable amount of the assels is judgmental and involves the use of signirlcant estimates and assumptions. The estimates 
are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable. but...mid! are inherenlly uncertain and unpredictable and do not refted 
unanticipated eYents and M:umstances that may occur. 

vi. Revenue recognition 

The company's revenue recogniUon policy, YIf'lich is set out in Note 2.2.4 Is central to how the company varues the work ~ has 
camed oul in each linancial year. 

These policies require lorecasts to be made 01 the outcomes of Contracts. whidl require. assessments and }udgemenls 10 be 
made on changes in scope of WCX'k and claims and variations. 

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entiUements lor tong term project. The range of 
potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to IInderlying prolitability and cash Row. 

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects of the contract: 
Determination of stage of completion 
Estimation 01 pro1ed completion date 
Provisions 101' foreseeable loses 
Estimated total revenues and esi!mated tolal oosts to completion. including claims ood variations. 

These are reviewed at each reporting dale and adjusllo renect the current best estimates. 



56
Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited 
CIN:·U45309DL2021GOI391675 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless othelWis. stated) 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment 
Partkul'l1I Com uters 
GrOll Cloying Amount fAi COlt) 

As at 01 s1 April 2023 
Additions 
DisposalsiAdjustrTlef11S 
Transter 10 Asset held few sale 

Exci1ange Gain! Loss 
As at 31st March 2024 

As It 1st April 2024 
Additions 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Excl'lat1ge Gain/ l oss 
AI at 31st March 2025 

Depreciation and impairment 
As at 01$1 April 2023 
Depreciation charge for the year 
Impairment 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Tril'lsfer k> Asset held lor sale 
bchange Gain/loss 

As at 31st March 2024 

As al l,1 April 2024 
Depreciation charge lor the year 
ImpaifTTlef11 
Disposals/Adjustments 
Transfer to Asset held for sale 
Exchanqe Gain! Loss 
As at 31s1 March 2025 

N,t book valu. 
As at 31,t Mlrch 2025 
As at 31st March 2024 

Nole: 

Tolal 

· · 
· · 
· · 
· · 
· · 
· . 

· · 
0.80 0.80 

· · 
· · 
· · 

0.'" 0.80 

· · 
· · 
· · 
· · 
· · 
· · . · 

· . 
0.18 0.18 

· · 
· · 
· · 
· · 

0.18 0.18 

0.62 0.62 
. . 

(I) Deprecia!ioo is provided based on useful life 01 assets which is in ~ne with the uselullife prescriDed in SChedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013 and disclosed as under 
Asset Cia .. Usefuilif. adopted and 

as per Schedule II (in 
yeal'l) 

Computer 3 
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4 Deferred Tall Auea (Net) 

AI The malof comoonent. of Income IIX expense for the year ended 31st March 2025 & 31st March 2024; -

Particulars 
For the year ended 
31st M.rch 2025 

Current Income tax 
Current Pefiond income tax charge 221.40 
Tax br earlier years (0.23) 
Deferred tax 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.05 

Income tllex~se reported in the Statement of Prorlt and Loss section 221.22 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2024 

51 .87 
-

0.01 

51.88 

B) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Indi"s domestic tax rate for 31st March, 2025 and 31st 
March 2024' -

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 31st 
31st March 2025 March 2024 

1. Accounting ProfiU(loss) before lax 879.83 205.15 
2. COfporate tax rate as per Income tax Act 1961 25.17% 25.17% 
3. Tax on accounting profit 221.44 51.63 
• • Effact on tax adjustments 
(i) T cu on expenses: 

(a) Pre-iocorporalion expenses (altowable)fnon allaNallle (0.01) (0.01) 
(b) Depreciation impacl (0.04) -
(e) Expenses disallowed- peI1TI(I'Ient differences 0.01 0.25 

(ii) Delerred tax expenses I (income) 0.05 0.01 
(iii) Tax adjustments for ear1ier ye.:n (0.23) -
(!vi A,y""'" "'i",'m.," (;<>eIud;", "",,"';'" 011) -
Total effect of tal ad ullments 0.22 0.25 
5. Incoma tax ex ' " rted in the statement of.l!!.orll and loss (3+.) 221.22 51.88 
6. ERective lax rate 25.14'4 25.29'4 

C) ComDonent of deferred tax assets and !liabilitiesl In Balance Sheet Ind Statement of Profit and loss 

Particularl Slatements of Profit 
Balance Sheet 

Statements of Profit 
Balante Sheet 

and loss and Lon 
31·Mar·25 31-Mar·25 31-Mar-24 31·M.,·24 

Pre-incorporation expense 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.03 
Depreciation 0.04 (0.04) - -
Carry fofward losses - - - -

Net deferred tax AneW Liabil ities 0.05 0.02 0.01 0.03 

OJ Reflected In the Balance Sheet as follows : 
Partk ulars 

Aut Au' 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Deferred tax assets 0.02 0.03 
Deferred tax liabilities (0.04) -

Deferred Tax Atsebl Liabilities Not (0.02 0.03 

~-,... 

-- -
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E) Reconcililtion of deferrld tax (liabilities) I assets: 
As at 3hl March 2025 
Particulars Bid.nee RecogniSed In 

As 3t hi April 2024 Statement of Prorlt 
(Notl and Loss 

Pre-incorporation expense 0.03 (0.011 
DlHerence in Book depreciation and 
Income tax depreciation . 10.041 

Net defemd to. Asset., Llabilitle. 0.03 0.05 

As at 311t March 2024 
Particulars Baianci RKognlsed In 

A. at 1st April 2023 Statement of Profit 
(Notl and Loss 

Pre-tncorporatioo expense 0.04 10.011 
Difference in Book depreciation and 
Income tax depreciation 

Net deferrtd tax ASSllsi{LJabilltles 0.04 0.01 

5 other Non-Currant Financlal Au ets 
Particulars Aut 

31st March , 2025 
(Unsec:urtd and considered good) 
Security Deposit . 

Contract Asset.: 
Contract Assets l.I\der SeMee Concession Arrangement 51 ,081.10 

Total 51,081.10 

Recognised In OCI Balance 
As at 31. 1 Milrch 2025 

(N"I 

· 0.02 

· 10.041 

· 0.02 

Recognised In OCI Balance 
A. a131.t March 2024 

INotl 

· 0.03 

· 0.03 

Aut 
31.t March, 2024 

· 

25,295.42 

2. M2 
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6 CUrrent Assets· Financial Assets 

6.1 Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Secured considered good 
Unsecured considered good 
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
Trade receivables<redil impaired 

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtfullrade receivables 
Total 

Note: 

As at Asat 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

- -
- 5,751.87 
- -
- -
- 5,752.87 
- -
· 5752.87 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule for based on posting date the year ended as at 318t March 2025 and 31st March 
2024 

For the year ended 31st March 2025 
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Outstanding for the year ended March 31st, 2025 from posting 

date 
lesslhan 6 months · 1·2 years More than 3 years 
6 months 1 year 

Undisputed Trade receivables-
considered good · · · · · · 
Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- Mlich have signi~can t 

increase in cred~ risk 

· · · · · · 
Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- credit impaired · · · · - · 
Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good · · · · · • 
Disputed Trade Receivables • 
which have significant increase 
in credit risk - · · · · · 
Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired · · · · · · 

· - - · - · 
Le:ss: Impnirmenl Allowance · · · · · · 
Total · · · · · · 
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F or the year ended 31st March 2024 
Particular. Unbilled NolDue Outstanding for the year ended March 31 st, 2024 from posting 

date 
Less than 6 months · 1-2 years More than 3 years 
6 months 1 vear 

Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good 

· · 5,752.87 · · · 
Undisputed Trade Receivables 
- which ha"" significant 
increase in credillisk 

· · · · · · 
Undisputed Trade Recei¥ables 
- credit impaired · · · · · · 
Disputed Trade Receivables 
considered good · · · · · · 
Disputed Trade Receivables -
......nich have significant increase 
in credit risk · · · · · · 
Disputed Trade Receivables -
credit impaired · · · · · · 

· · 5,752.81 · · · 
Less: Impairment Allowance · · · · · · 
Total · · 5,752.87 · · · 

6.2 C urren I FI . IA I C h dC hE Iv I I nancla sse s· as an as 'qu a en s 

Particulars As at Aut 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

Balances wtth banks: 
Earmarked Funds· 

- On current accounts 310.76 15.65 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 772.00 200.00 

Tolal 1,082.76 215.65 
, The bank account IS an Escrow Account as per Concession Agreement WIth NHAJ. Short-term depoSits are made for 
varying periods of between seven days and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, 
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6.3 Current Assets Other Financial Assets . 
Particular. 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Security Deposit 
Contract Assets : 

Contract Assets under Service Concession Agreement 
Money Withheld by Client 

Interest accrued on fixed deposit 
Recoverable from Others 
Recoverables from Holding Company 

Total 

7 Current Tax Assets (Netl 

Particular, 

Taxes Paid including ros and Advance Tax (Net of provision for tax) 

Total 

8 Other Current Assets 

PartJculars 

(Unsecured and considered good) 
Advance. Recoverable from 
Goods & SeNices Tax (GST) 
Prepaid Expenses 

Total 

As at Asat 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

· · 
· · 

1,441,81 · 
0.38 0.33 
· 0.01 

55.35 · 

1,498.55 0.34 

As at Asat 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

. 545.41 

· 545.41 

As ,t As at 
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 

8,191.59 4,458.11 
71 .89 10.69 

8264.48 4,468.90 



62

Ircon ludhiana Rupnagar Highway limited 
GIN :·U45309Dl2021GOI39167 5 
Notfllo flnancialslatemenll for the year ended 31st March 2025 
(AI amounrs in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless otheIwisc siated) 

9 Equity Share c . :apltal 
Aut Aut 

Particulan 31 st March, 31st March, 
2025 2024 

Authorlstd Share Clpital 
14500000 equity shares 01 Rs.1OJ· each 

1,450.00 1,450.00 (31 .03.202414500000 equity sh..-es of Rs. 101- each) 

Issued, subscribed Ind fully plid·up shares 
11110000 equity wares of RS.l01· each 

1,11 1.00 362.00 
(31.03.2024 3620000 equity sh..-es of Rs. 101· each) 

Tolal illued subscribed and fu l Id·u share ca illl 1,111.00 362.00 

I) Promotar's shareholdino 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end 01 the year It. change 

%oltol,1 during the 
Promoter Nlme No. of shares 

shares period 

As at 31st March, 2<l25 Ireen Intemationallimited 1,11 ,10,000 100% · 
Outstanding at the end of the ye.u 1,11 ,10,000 100% · 
As at 31s1 March, 2024 Ircon International Umited 36,21),000 100% · 
Outstandln at the end of the '" 36,20,000 100% · 

(b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beg inning and at the end of the reponing year 

Paniculars At at 31s1 March, 2025 AI at 31st March, 2024 

AI the beginning of the year 
Issued dun"" ~e oeriod 
Outstanding It the end ot the eo< 

(c) Termsl rights attached to equity shires 
(i) Voting 

No. of Shares 

36,21),000 
74,90,000 

111,10000 

Amount in No. 01 Shires Amount In 
lakhs lakhs 

362,00 SO,OOO 5.00 
749.00 35.70,000 357.00 

1111,00 3620000 362.00 

The Company has only one class of equity shares havil1g a par value of 10 per Share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
\lote per share. 
(Ii) lIquldltion 
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity sh¥es will be entitled to receive remaining assets 01 the Company, 
after distribution of an prefernnlial amounts. The distribution wil be in proportioo to the number of equity shares held by the 
shareholders. 
(liij Dividend 
Ttle Company has not Pfoposecl, declared Of paid any final or interim dividerJd durir'lg the ?Criod and until the dale of board meeting 
in which this flnaocial statement has been approved. 

(d) The Company has allotted 35,70,000 Equity Shares as on 27th June, 2023 at a price of Rs. 10 per Equity Share (al a premium 
of Rs. Nil per Equity Share) by way 01 a Right Issue after approval from the Bawd of DireclOfs al Board Meetfng held on 21s1 June. 
2023. 

The Company has allotted 74,9(},000 Equity Shares as on 25th November, 2024 at iii price of Rs. 10 per Equity Shn (at a 
premium 01 Rs. Nil per Equity Share) by way of a Righi issue ater approval from the Board of Directols at Board Meeting I'Ield on 
29~ October, 21)24. 
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:a) Details of shareholdel1 holding more Ihan 5'1. shares In the Company: 
Partlcullrl As 113151 Mlrch, 2025 A3 at 31$1 MlrCh, 2024 

No. of Sharl,!$ % holding in No. of Shares % holding In 
the ,Iall the clall 

Equity Shares 01 RI. 10 each fully paid 
1,11 ,10,000 100% 36,20,000 100% 

Ircon Internalionallimited and its nominees· . 600 iqUlty sh.res hold by nomlnM shlrellolders on bella" of thl holding company . 

(Q Holding Company 1A/s lreon Inlemalional limited" is public sector construction company, holding l ()()C'k Equity Share of the 
company. 

10 Other Eauity 
Aut Aut 

Partlculara 31st March , 311t March , 
2025 2024 

Retained Earnin9s 796.44 139.06 
Quasi Equity 9,996.00 5,442.00 

Total 1([,792.44 5581.06 

il Mov,ment OIl pIT below: 
R ' edEaI "''" rn~gs 

As 11 Aut 
P.rth:ullra 31st MarCh. 31st March, 

2025 2024 
Opening Balanca 139.06 10.O~ 
Transfef from surplus in statement of profit alld loss 655.61 153.27 
Share issue expenses 11.23) (14.14) 

Closln Balance 796.44 139.06 

Quasi Equity 
Aut Aut 

Particular. 31$1 March , 311t March, 
2025 2024 

Opining Balanc. 5.442.00 89.00 
Add: Reteipl of Quasi equity 4,554.00 5,353.00 

Clo$ing Batance 9,996.0([ ~442.00 

II) N,ture and PUfPO$l: 
Retained Earninga 
Retained Earniflgs represents the undistributed profits oIltle Company. 

Relillned Earnings 

Quasi equity represent equity contribution Irom tne Holding Company In form of interest free Ioal. The Company 
dOes oot !\aVe any repilymen\ obligntion and IIfI defined as "EQuir( in the Concession Agreement with NHAI. 
Accordingly, these are considered to be in tnl nature of equity instruments. 
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11 Non Current Financial Liabilities· Bomwinas 
Aut AI at 

Particulars 31st Much, 31st March , 
2(125 2024 

Term Loan Secured" 
• f rom Books 44415.00 19,700.00 
Total 44 415.00 19700.00 

(i) The Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the lerm loan of Rs. 57,062 Iakh. During the year Term Ioar1 of Rs. 24,715 lakh 
(Previous Year Rs 19,700 lakh) was disbursed. 

(ii) Details of Terms and Conditions: . 
(i) Interest rate to be charged on loan shall be MCLR Plus spread of 0.09% with monthly rest. Presently. the applicable interest rate 
is 8.24% p.a. 
(i) Moratorium of 6 monlllS from the date of PCOD/COD. 
(iii) Term Loan shall be repayable in 26 structured hatf·yearty installments. with the first repayment starting from the end 01 6 
months from the SCOD or COD whichever is earlier. 
(iv) IntOfest !>hall be paid monthly basis on the last day of calender monlt!. 
(v) Corporate Guarantee of the Promoter i.e.lrcon International United (MA Ra\e1::l) shall be available tilllhe receipt of 1st aflfluity 
from NHAI or COD" 180 days. whictlever is later. 
(VI/ Security: Too Factlity together with all interest lees, commission and other monies whatsoever stipulated and due 10 !he leOOer 
shaQ be sllCUred. to the enent permitted ooder the Concession Agreement. by: 

·A fi!'!t mortgage and tflarge on allhe Borrowers irrrnovable properties (if CW1y). both present and future. save and except the 
Project Assets: 

·First charge on all the Borrower's tangible moveable assets, including movable plant WId machinery, machinery spares. tools <rod 
8CCessories, furniture. fiJdure, vehicles and aI other movable assets, both preseflt and future. save and except the Project Assets; 

' first charge over alt accounts of the borrower induding ES(;row Account and the Sub-Account, (or any account in substitution 
thereoij thai may be opened In accordance with the Concession Agreement, Faciily Agreement, Escrow Agreement and the 
Supplementary Escrow Agreement, or any of the other Project OoctJments and all funds from time to time depos~ed therein, the 
Receivables and or other securities, provided that; 

· The same bein9 applied to the extent of waterl~ of priority of payment as specified the Concession Agreement and the Escrow 
Agreement and not beyond that; and 

(oJ the charge Ollef the Receivables shall be erlforceable by the Senior lenders for the purpose 01 ensuring that the Receivables 
are credited to the Escrow Account lor the purpose of being applied to the extent of watelfall 01 priority of payments are spec:ified in 
the Concession Agreement and the Escrow Agreement and not beyond that. 
First marge on alt intangible assets of the Borrower including but not timited \0 goOOwiD, rights, undertakings and un<:alled capital 
present and future excluding the Pro;ect Assets (provOed that all amounts received on account of any of these 5half be deposited in 
the Escrow Account and the cnarges on the same shall be subject to the extent permissible as per priority specffied the Coocession 
Agreement and Escrow Agreemen~. Further, a charge on uncalled capital, as set in above, shall be SlJbject however to the 
provisions of the concession Agreemerlt; 

first charge Of assigMlent by way or Security in; 
'AII the righi, title. interests, benems. daims and demands whatsoever of the borrower In, to and under the Project Documents; 
• The righl tittle. interests, benefits, claims, and demands whatsoever of the Borrower In. to and under all the Approvals 
·AU the right. title, interesl benefits. daim and demands whatsoever of the Borrower In, 10 and under any letter or credit guarantees 
including contraclor guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party to the Project Documents; 
~d 

·Afl the rights, tiUe, interests, benefits. daims and demands whatsoever or the Borrower in, 10 and under at! ttle illSUfal1ce Contacts: 
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12 Current liabilities· Financialliabilitlet 

12.1 C urren IUblrtlt T d P bl a , ,- ra • 'ava .. 
Particulars 

(8) t.icfo, Sma! and Medium Enlerpri!>eS 
(b) Other than Miao, Smal and Medium Entclpfises 
. Contrac\of & Suppliers 
• Related Parties 

TOlal 
Notes. -

Aut AI at 
31,t March, 31st March, 

2025 2024 
1.68 3.98 

83.54 37.99 
2.58<).82 9.831.09 

2666.0. 9879.06 

a) Diselolures as required under Companies Act, 2013 Micro, Sma. and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
(MSMED) are provided in Note 34. 

Trade payable, Ageing Schedule based on potting date for the year cnded as at 31.t March 2025 and 31,1 March lOU. 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterpriseS 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed dues of mao enterprises and small 
enterprises 

Disputed dues of credbs other than lTicro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 

Total outslalding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises aAd small enl6fJlri~ 

Dispuled dLJeS 01 micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and smaU enlerpr;ses 

12.2 Current U.bllltl" • Other Fk1ancial Llllbiities 

Particulars 

Unl!Cured 
Payable to Holding Company 
Money withheld from hoIdil'lQ company 
Interest accrued on secured borrowings 
Other able indudW! staff able 
Total 

Unbilled Nol Due 

- 1.68 

- -

- -

- -

UnblUed Not Due 

- 1.07 

- -

- -

. -

Oul,landin fOt the vear ended as at 31st 
Less than 1 1-2 years More than 2 

Yelr yurs 
- -

2.664.36 -

- -

- -

Oul,tanding for the year ended JI.t 311t 
Lenihan 1 

Yllr 
2.92 

9,875.08 

A. at 
J1st March , 

2025 

9.61 
2,402.88 

10.03 
0.91 

2,423.13 

-

. 

1-2 year. 

AUI 
3111 March, 

2024 

5.06 
236.97 

4.38 

246.41 

More Ihan 2 
years 

-

-

-

-

Tolal 

- 1.68 

- 2,664.36 

- -

- -

Total 

- 3.98 

- 9.875.08 

- . 

- -
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Ircon Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway limited 
CIN:·U4S309DL2021G0I391675 
Notes to financial statements lor the year ended 31st March 2025 
(All amoun/s irllndian Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

13 Other Current liabilities 

Particulars 

Others 
Statutory dues Payable 

Total 

14 CUrrent Tax liabilities (Net) 

Particulars 

Provision for Income tax (Net or Advance lax and TaJ[ Deducted 
at Source) 

Total 

15 R f evenue rom oDe rations 
Particulars 

Contract revenue 

Total 

16 Other Income 
Particulars 

Interest Income: 
Interest on Fixed Deposits 
Interest on Income-tax Refund 
Miscellaneous Income 
Less : Insurance Claim Passed on 

Total 

17 ProJect Exoenses 
Particulars 

WOf1I. Expenses 
Inspection, Geo Techincal lnvestigation & Survey Exp. Etc 
Other 'MJrk expenses 

Total 

(~('wJ 
-

310.47 
{3 10.47 

Aut Asal 
31st March, 31st March, 

2025 2024 

477.43 510,09 

477.43 510.09 

As at Asst 
31st March, 31st March, 

2025 2024 

42.15 

42.15 · 

For the year FDr the year 
ended 31s1 ended 31st 
March 2025 March 2024 

31,756.55 52.664.29 

31 ,756.55 52664.29 

For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 
March 2025 March 2024 

3.67 14.39 
17.79 · 
. · 

21 .46 14.39 

For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 
March 2025 March 2024 

27.974.94 51,603.99 
114.62 90. 19 

8.73 3.62 

28.098.29 51.697.80 
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In.on Ludhlana Rupn.gar Highway Limited 
CIN:·U45309D12021GOI391615 
Not .. to fin.nclal ,t.tements for the Y!3r !nded 31 st Mlrch 2025 
(AI amounts in Indian Rt"ees l a#!hs unless otherwise staled) 

18 Empoyee benefit. expense. 
Particular. 

Salary & Wages 
Contrlbulion to Provident and Other Funds 
Retirement Benefits 

Total 

19 Finance Cost 
Particulars 

Injerest Expenses 

Total 

20 Other Elpens .. 
ParUcular. 

Reo' 
Rates & Taxes 
Insurance 
Communication, Postage and COUfief Charges 
Travelling & Conveyance 
Printing & Stationary expenses 
legal & Professional charges 
Aud~or Remuneration 
Business promotion 
Bank charges 
MiscellCll1eous Expenses 
Toul 

(i) P.!yment to the Auditor. 
Particulars 

Paymenl to the .udltor's for 
• StatutOI)' Audit Fee 
• Tax Audit Fee 
• Fee for OlJarterly linited review 
· CertifICation 
• OUt of Pockel expenses 

Tot.1 

Forthe ye.r Forth. year 
ended 3ht ended 31s1 
March 2025 March 2024 

62.35 35.24 
4.SO 2.68 

10.30 5.52 

n.15 0." 

For the year For Ihe year 
endec! 31s1 ended Jbt 
March 2025 March 2024 

2,634.89 611.14 

2634.89 611.14 

For the ytar For the year 
ended 31.t ended J1s1 
March 2025 March 2024 

3.31 3.31 
0.08 · 

64.03 90.81 
0.06 · 
0.39 0.48 
0.11 0.35 

11.20 15.12 
1.65 1.30 
. 0.13 

0.03 2.49 
0.19 1.16 

81.61 115.15 

Forthe year For the year 
ended Jist ended 3hl 
March 2025 March 2024 

0.72 0.65 
0.21 0.20 
0.39 0.30 
0.22 0.15 
0.11 · 
US 1.30 

• 
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lreon ludhllna Rupnagar Hlghwlly limited 
CIN:·U453D9012021 GOl391675 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 
!AI amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs unless othetWise stated) 

21 Disclosure as per Ind AS 21 'The Effecls of Changes in Foreign Exchange Ralas 
The amount of exd'lange dtferences (net) credited/debited 10 the statemenl of profit and loss is Nil (FY 2023-24: Ni l). 

I) Foreign Ctl rren transKtions 

Plrticular 

Details of foreign curreocy traflSilClions are as follows. 
Expenditure incurred in foreign currency 
Incane earned in foreign currency 
During the }'Qat" the company has no untlEXlgocl foreign cummcy exposures. 

22 Disclosure as pw Ind AS 19 on Employ" benefits 

For the year ended 31s1 For 1M yelr ended 
March 2025 Jht Mlrch 2024 

Tile employees in II"COfl Ludhiatla RUJX1<KJII" Highway l imited are posted on nomirlalionl secoodmem basis !rem licon InternatIOnal IJmiled (Holding 
Compo>,). 

In terms 01 actQUnting policy 01 the Company (Note No. 2.2.7) and arrangement with the Holding Compan~, the r:rovisiCJ1 for Retirement Benefits sud'l as 
provident fund, pension. glalti1y, post rellf8ll1eflt medical benelits, leayC$ iIOd 0Iher termino! bcooflts 01 nominated employees is being made by Hddi~ 

oompany in terms of 1M AS-19. The OOlOIJnl paid or payable tow.-ds provident fund. pension, gratuity, post retirement rned"lCai benefits, Leaves and other 
terminal benefits to \tie hokting comf*1Y are included III 'Employ1K! Benofit Expenses" (Note 16). 
PIOVident Fund Contribution of 1110 omployees on nomlnatloo/seoondment have been reg lll<r1y deposHed by lle holding company with its P.F Trust. 

23 Related Party DicclocurK 
Disclosures in compliance YMh 1M AS 24 'Related P~ Oi5c1osures' are as under. 
.) l lsl of Related Parties 
Ii) Holdir"ISJ comp.ny 

Ircon International Limited 
Iii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

N.me 
Stlri Par3!j VMna 
SM Masood Ahmad 
Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra 
Ms. Yamini S<!hib (w.e.f. 27th .Iune 2024) 
Slw"1 M..igunthan Boju Gowda (Uplo 31s1 December, 2(24) 
Shn Alin Roy Choottlury (w.e.!. 1$1 January 2025 to 7th Fobru~ 2025) 
Shri Jas'.Wldef Singh (w.e.f. 28th March 2025: COO uplo 27 th March 2025) 
Shri Mohammad H5Inan (w.e.f. 28th June 2(201) 
Shli AI1kH Jan (w.e.!. 29th' Avril 20251 

o..~,~100 
Nominee Director 
Nominee Directot 
Nominee Drrector 
Nominee Director 
NomlrlCC Oireclor 
Nominee Diraclor 

Ct1ief Executive 0!0Cer 
Chief Financial Officer 

""'etaN) 

(i ii) The IRCON LlIcIliana Rupnagar Highway Limited is WOOly owned su~id iary of IRCON IntemailOflalllmited. Tho IRCON IS a CPSE under the "'nlstry of 
RaIlway. The company is controled by GOI, by holding 65.17% of eqUIty shales in Ina name 01 President of India as a131.03.2025. Pu~uant to Para 25 
<I1d 26 of 1M As 24, entities over which the same Ministry has control Of joint control 01 01' signifiCO¥lt inlluance, then the reporting entity and other tIIltllies 
shrJl be regarded as related parties. TfllflSiICIiorl with those parties JI"O eamed oul ill m..-kel terms -'tarm length b3sis. Tha CD'npany has applied the 
exemption available IOf government relatcc1 entllies and have ~m itad disclosure in firrCllClal slalemenlS. 

b ) Transactlona with Key Managerial Personnel/KMPI of the ComDany are as follows: 
Partleulal"l For the year ended 31st For the year ended 

March 2D25 l ist Much 20201 

1 Short term em t benefits 32.57 · 
2 Poe.t-em ment bonofits 6.45 · 
I~LOther: long term I benefib 4.01 · 
Total 4103 · 
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frcon Ludhfana Rupnagar Highway limited 
efN :-U45309DL2021 GOl391675 
Notes to fin.n<:i" , tatements for the yur ended 31st March 2025 
(All amounts'" Indial1 Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 

oj Transactions with other rel.tad niel lr. as fol owt: 
Nature of Iransactlon Name of related party 

1) Reimbursemeflt expenses 
2) Rent Expense (ioousive of GST) 
3) WorkS Contrad 
4) Expenses for il\Cfease in share capital 

IrCOIl International l lmiled 
5) Proceeds fmm issue of Equity Shares 
6) Insurance Claim 
7) Recoverable from freon fnlernatiooalUd 
8) Quasi Equity (rom freon International ltd 
, n Ing I d) 0 tm d' baI ances wI! ,,, alea parties are 85 0 . h h d d - , 

Nature 01 transaction Name of relaled party 

BalarlCC Pa able as on re n date 
Balance Recoverable as 00 re n date Ircon Internationailimited 

~Y Share C~t~ (lndudl~ O\Ja:>i uit 
e) T .rms and conditions of transacllons with related parties 

Nature of For the year ended 31st 
relationshio March 2025 

40.99 
3.31 

27.974.94 

HoldiflQ Company -
749.00 
310.41 
55.35 

4554.00 

Nature of ",,' 
relationship 31St March 2025 

4,993.31 
Holding Company 55.35 

11107.00 

(i) Transactiorls with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's leflgth tralsactions. 

For tho year ended 
31st March 2024 

21.22 
3.31 

51,603.99 
14.14 

-
-
-

5,353.00 

",,' 3151 March 2024 
10079.12 

-
5,804.00 

(ri) OutstandiflQ balances oi related panies at the reporting dale are unsecured and seUiemenl occurs through banking transactions. These balances are 
interest free. 

24 Earnings per share IEPS) 
Disclosure as per lnd AS 33 'Earnlngs per share' 

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by divk:ling the pl"oflt lor !.he year attributable to equity holders b~ Inc weighled averaae number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. 

(b) Diluted EPS is calculated b~ dividing the p(()li t for the period attributable 10 the equil~ holders after considering the effect of dilution by weighted average 
number 01 equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average numbel" of equity sflares that \YOUld be issued on conversIOn of all the 
dilulive p:>tential equity shares into equil~ shares. 

(' 

(ii 

J Basic and diluted earnlnas per share Un R!oL 

Plrticulars NoI, For ttle year ended 31st For the year ended 
March 2025 31st March 2024 

Profit attributable to Equity IIofders (Rs. in lakhs) (ii) 658.61 153.27 
No.of equity shares 1,11.10,000 36.20,000 
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic alld Diluted EPS (In 

(iii) 
Numbers) 62,OS,589 27,81,148 
Ecrnings per share (Basic) 10.61 5.51 
Ecrnings per share (Diluted) 10.61 5.51 
Face value per shae 10.00 10.00 

i) Profit attributable to equity shareholden;; (used as numerator) (Rs.ln lakhs) 

Particulars For the year ended 315\ For the year ended 
March 2025 31st March 2024 

Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 658.61 153.27 
Profit attributable to Equily holders 01 the company used for computing EPS 658.61 153.27 

i) Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nol.) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 3151 For the year ended 

March 2025 31st March 2024 
Opening bataoce of issued equity sh,.-es 36,20.000 50,000 
E~ity stlares issued during Itle period 74,90,0Cl0 35}O.()(x) 
El'J.l ity shares outstanding as 00 date 1,11,1G,OOO 36,20,OGO 
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 62,05,589 27.81,148 
Dilution Effect: 
Add: Weighted average numbers of polet1tial equity shares outstandiflg durirlg the year - -
Weighted aver.ge number of e9uit~ shares for computing Diluted EPS 62,05,589 27,81,148 
Note. Weighted average number of equity shares IS the number of shares outstandiflg from the dale of IflcorporatlOfl adjusted by the number of eqUity 
shares issued during the period multiplied by the lime weighbng factor. The time weighting factor is the number 01 days for which the specific shares are 
outstandl{l9 Of, 'j - of total rtI..rnbel of days dUfing the period. 

~w' ~~'g" 0~ f(* ,.'_ ~I • 
\ ("", nu .... '!£ON , 

,'. ''' ... ..... -. 
~Acc," 
~ • 
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Irton Ludll lani Rupnigilr Highway Limited 
CIN:-u.t5309DL2021GOI39167S 
Not" 10 filllllCillltll.mtnlS for ttl. year .ntled 31st MIrth 2025 
(Al18I'I'IOU"tS in lillian Rupees L.akIIs \1'118$$ otheIwi&e &lated) 

25 knPlir~t of A, .. !s 
During the periOd, C~ I'Ias camed QUI UMssment on ir'nf!ainnoot of individlli!l asse4s !)y workir,; OIJ !he recoverable amount bI!~ on IoWllr of the neI 
leallLa~e value and carrying cos! in terms or 100 AS 36, 'lmpau1I1ell! 01 Assets' norlfJed l.II1der section 133 of tile ,omp<lll;;" Ad, 2013 read with Ryle 3 of the 
Com~ (Indian Accounlng Starmrds) Rules, 2015 and Companies (irKlian acGOI.IntH"g SlanlJaros) Amendmer'il. Rules 2()1/i . ActOI1lingly, inpainnent loss of Rs. N ~ 

(~23-24: NI) lias been proitided lot. 

26 CtMn~ In .,ccounting poIiein and disclourlll 
New .n~ amended llandtrdl . 
The Mlllblry of Corporate Affairs has notified CompOOIeS (IOOian Al;QJooting SIill"rdaniS) Amendment RulH, 21.124 to i,lITlCIld I aI.Iopi the following 100 AS which are 
ellecti-le lot IInnuai periods begimir1;J on ~ lifter Apri 1. 202-4. The C«npany has 1Idop!ed certr*l new aCCOtrllHJiI standards and amendmefllS effective m Alri I, 
2024. 

IIlI AS 117. 1/lSt.ranee COI1.racts, wI1iCh re~ IIlI AS 104, provides ~ gyklarlte onlile rewgnilion, meas .... tIITItII"t. Pre3ef1tation, and di:ldo$l.l"e of 
Insurance contracts: however, ~ had no inpact on the Company's fir.ancial $Iatemelll, as the Company has not entefed 11110 alT1insl.lance contracts. 

FurtIlcr, an amendmeru 10 tnd AS 116. 1Iases. rehll\l"iI 10 Ie~ liilbi~ies arbir9 lrom sale Md leaseback IrMsactions, wsa also notified. Since the Con1lanv has not 
l.I"IdeAAen any such ~, the ~nI did no! affect b rlll8ncia1 s!aternetlts. As of the reporting date, l!lere are flO new staOOards that II;we been ootiried 
but all' IlOl yet eIfective. 

27 Provision, Contlng, nclt, and Commltmtnl. 

(I ) Provi. ion. 
PmYislons tIas been made dLrir9 the year in accordNoce with 1111 AS 31'Prtl'f1slons. Contrlgenl Liabl~ies and ConIirgenl: Assets'. 

(b) Conting,n! Iilbilities 
No Claims against the Company adroowledgad as debt!. M on the rtll)OIting dat, at per lrod AS 37 'ProIrisiOttS. DlMngenl l labUities and ConlWlgent Assets'. 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed to lhlt e~I!II1t of claims lodged against the COfI"IjlIIny end ere r>:llr8Uob1n~e to the Company by Ihe EPC Cclllractor. Tho 
Company is of the view that there ilfe no such cases. 

(e) CorrtlnglMlt HMIS 

No claims In lawu oItha company actOI.rted iI$ receivables as on the rBpOlling date iI$ per tlld .... S 37 'Provisions, CorcJngenl li3bJities and ConIirgenI 

""'" 
(d) Commitments 

CapiIat. Estimalod N!'oOUrI of coNractJ rerr\llining to be executed 011 ca~al 3CtOl.I\I (Nat of advance) and no/ provided lor is N ~. 

Oilier. Contrad~ EPC WDfIr. remaining lor exea.rtion as on M3n:h 31st. 2025 Rs 3O,6lO.08lakh (Milfch 31$1. 2024. Rs. 51 .927.29I..akh) 

2! Segmtfll Rlportlng 
(I) G.nllallnlormttion 

Operating segmenls 8111 defined as ccmponents of an enterprise lOt whidl discre!e Mantial information is available whictt Is being evaluated regtAarly by tf1e 
Chief Opefatlng 0iIc1s1on Mak!ll" ICOOt-A) in rMcidirtg how 10 aIIocaIe resourtI!S end Imes~ng perform!lllCO. The 8c<"ll\1 of OirtclOlS of the C~any is Ihe Cllief 
~11J Deci5Ion Maker (COOM~ The Company is engaged on the b\.Isoness 01 irIIrasltUClure deveklpmenlln the stale of PooJab and the Chilli 0geratlng 
Decision Maker (COOM) mondors the operatrtg resl.t$ of the bosiness as a sIrgIe segm!nt, hence no separate segment needs 10 be lb:Iosed in ae«JI'lIance 
will II\e ~irement, or Ind AS 10l! . 

(II) InfolJllltion ,bout gtog"plliu l lnformallon 
As lhe Company operates In a single geographical segment i.e. Il'IIlla, hence no SCParaiC geographical segmenlls disdose<l. 

titi) Information ,bout IT"llljor cUltomer 
OuI!'9lhe year enOed Mard131st. 2025, Rewnue 01 R •• 31 ,756.s:i lakhl (M, rch 311t, 2024 R •• 52,&64.29l.ikhs) are 6&rioiad from a si"IgIe customer Le. 
NHAI wtictI is 1"1"1011! than 10"10 0( the Company's total rev!1lJe. 

29 Flnanelal Risk . , nig_nl 
T~ Company's prillClj)I!l fillar1cial liabitities comprise borTowings. trade paya~es and other COO"ellllinanc:ialliabit~ies. The main purpose of tllese IirM::lall lablllbeS is 
to fillllflCe l~ Company'. operations. The Company', principal fiMnciai assets irlcWde Trade receN~es , oilier firl(!ncial asseIs and cash and sholt·lerm deposits. 
The Company is exposed to the loIIawing risks from its use oflioaneiat instruments: Cred~ riSk, liquidity risIo. Md MaO.et risk. This !\:lIe presenu itlformation about lhe 
<:ampany's &pos1J"e 10 each of the aIlr:Ne risb, the Company's objectives. pak;ies and jltOCesses f~measuring and managing risII;. 

Rllk Uanl!j.m&Ill FflIlIIftOrt 
T~ ~s ad;"-~ies make it slJSCCJl\ible to variolJS risks. The Company has taken ildequate measlXes 10 a(l.jress sl.lCh amcems by devdopWy,j ildequate 
systems and practices. The Board or Cil'C(tors has o~erall responslbil~y lor the estatilslvnent and O'<~ht 01 the Company's risk m/lMgemenl fram(!Wor~. 

I) Crtclit Risk 
Credit risk is the risII; of Mancialloss to \he Company ~ a cuslO/IlI!f Of mulllerpany to a financial instrurMnl lails 10 meet its cortradual obligations rasUting in a 
financial m to parry. Credit risk lIfl~ pnrlCIpiIIy "till lrade receivables. cash and cash equMller,ts wrth banks and other IinirciaI iI5Stb. The 

"""~""t'Q"'~0(~ ....... """"M_.,,,""'_ """"'" by" ...,.mom. ~ 
t" .... 4 • 
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IrCOI'l Ludll l.n. Rupnil9i11 Highw.y limited 
CIN:oU45309Dl2021GOI391615 
Not" 10 rlnallClal statlmtnl. forthl ye~r ended 31.1 .bn;II2025 
(Ail amou'lIs in Indian Rupe!! lIkhlI r.IlIess 04herwiso SIaIod) 

tQ 

Cuh .nd cnh equi ... ~lenl$ 
The cash and cash equillalents Me held in pu~ic sedOr blinkS wilh slrorg credij ratingS, 

Trade Reeel'lablK and othlr flnanclal .... ta 
The ~s e~posm: 10 aed~ rislI b Inftuenced many by tho characlorl6ticf, 01 tile CU$tomef. The demeglaphics of the oostomer. incl uding the delarAl risk 
01 the iMlI5lJy aM IXUIIry in whictl lhe MIomef operates. also lIaS an inftuence on creclk risII ~ The Comparry derfvM ~~fUI primIIrtiy !rom \he 
~ (If Expreuway and OCher financial assets primafily relates 10 the I.MiIIed /!venue under ServICe Concession AlrangIllTl8fll (seA). The credit ris~ 
arising from these tree\;! receNablfl'$ and unbi\ed I~ is lim~ed because the counterpart)' is N3IioMl Highways Mhorily 01 India (NHAI). an alAQoomOuS 
illgency of GOlierMlent of tndia. with capacity to meet rhe obHgations and theretore. the ri$l:; QI' default is ooery negligible 01' Nil. 

EKposure to critdit rilk IRI. ln LJkhl 
Particulars Au' Alit 

31.1 March. 31s1 Much. 

'''' "" 
Filllnci.1 "'MI. lor which llIowlnct II mtll llr, d 1I .lng 1I1 .. li .... u p.-c:ted eredil lost II per Ilmplified .pproach 
Tracie Receivables - 5.752.87 
Cash and Cash EQi,ivaierts 1,082.76 215.65 
Other Financill AsstIs 52 579.65 25 Z95.16 

(ii) Prorision lor up&Cted credit Ioutl 
No imp<IImlenllOU I'IIIS been ~COQniseIl during ifte reportinJ period. 

Summary of loll IUOwi nte musured usirlo &lmDliflid aDDr~ch:- (RL In L.IIkhs 
PIrtk:ulll1 ••• A, al 

Jill Mlrtk, 3111 Milrth, 
2025 2024 

Opening AllowlnclI - -
Provided during lite )'t/lf - -
Uliliza&n during the yeiJI - -
ArnoID w~oII' - . 
Closing AIowancM - -

b) Liquidity risk 
liquidity rislI: is Ii'e risk that the Ccmpany wjl eN:Ol.l1ler dilTlaiIy In meetlrg the oIlIil)aOOos a:ssocialecl wth b fincn:;ial liCiblities lhat are 5CltIed by deH~ring 
cash or another ftlarri.lll asset. The ~y's approach 10 l'!laf'I<Iging liQudity is TO ensure. as far as POSSible. tIIaI ~ willlaw s~1CIen: 11quid~~ 10 meel lts 
Iiabil~ies 'Ir'tIen they are due, iIlOer boIh rlOm1iII iIIld sbl:!$$I:Id conditions. willlDIl iAWTing unaccep;able losses Of nsU'lg dar'll3!)EllO TtJir Company·, ,~. 

Liquidity posIiOn of the Compalrj is rllYiewed on a reg~ar basis by the Soard 01 O,redors/Wld appcopriete cleciSiortJ are laken according to the situation. 

Th.llble below rowlde. delaill ardin th" nlflunl flnnclll UlblliUn 11.131 Yareh 2025 & 31 March 2024 fRs.1n Lakhs 
P.rtk:u,,"rs Ai. i11 31st 1I¥c "10 

Len lhiln 1 1·2 Yllrs 2ynrs . nd 
Ve~r . boy. 

Borrowlngs - 333.1' «,081.89 
Trade PayalRs 2.656.04 - -

. """ ... "''-'' . -
CRt. In Ll khl ) 

Pa rticula l$ AI.t 3fst M,ICh 2024 
Ln ' than 1 , ·2Y ..... 2 Y"'''' and 

VII' .bo .... 

Booowings 147.75 19,552.25 
Trade Payatles 9,879.06 -
Othef Financlill UabRies 246.41 - -

c) Mlrtlet risk 
Markel risk is the risk lMt changes in mane! priCM. such IS IDfelgn exchange ratos and inlcrcsl rales will affect the Compolny's irocome. The objective d 
rniII'I:et risk m<mJemenI is 10 ITI<II1Ige iV'd IXlIiroI martel risk exPOSll'!$ within acceptable paranelers, wf'Iie opti'nising the reitm The Board 01 Oirectors is 
respon$ibie lor setti1I up of policies and proce<I\.WeS 10 manage maf\:et risks cf tile ComPil'!Y. 

(I) fortign Currltflq rbk 
The lunctional CU'Tenty 01 the Q:lrrwly Is Indian Rupees. The Comparry is not exposed 10 ally' foreign currency fi~ 
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IrCOllludhiana Rupnag" Highway limited 
CIN:·U.m90L202IG0I391675 
Nol •• 10 rinWlcial "'tementf; lor tht yNr tndtd 311t Mardi 2025 
(AI ~S il lrOian R@SLakhsurieSSothel'wisestaled) 

(ii) Inll rnl raIl ri.k 
Interasl rate risk is the risk lhaIloo fair value at tht fwe cash IIorwI of • fillarOal ins!fIJ'!lII1t wi HllCluala because of cilanges II martel if11eres! rilles. 
Finardal insIn.merti affected by inlere$l rate risk indudes deposib with banks '" bOflOWIrg !rom b¥L Intern! rale risl on ~ wih banks are vtlt"J low as 
11181"11S1 rale is tiled forth!! perm oIfiMrri8I mInJnenIs. The ComPilO1 is exposed!o Interest rale risk erisrog many from IlOI'KI.IrTeIll bonowings with IIoating 
inlcresl roto bccauoo tho c::Kh flows 3,sociat&d with floating rate borrowings wm l uclU1rte Wlth cI\ao;les in Intefesl rates. 

AJ the rlOOltina d.te. Interest nlte orotic 01 tnc 
Particulars 

Flxtd rill In.tnlmtnt 
FIIarciaI Asset 
Financialliabilies 

Floating r.t.ln.trument 
Finlla Asset 
Fnaoc:iaI l iabilities 

3(j F. irV.lul " .. ""rements 
- ) 

" .. " .... , 
(I) Trade ReceNabies 
(ii) casn and cash equlvalenls 
(ill Other fiMrriaI assets 

I Lilb ilitin . t I\!nortizod Cost 
(') ' 

:~\:: : , 

, 
(i) Tracie Receivables 
(ii) Cash and ca$h tqiJNalents 
(iii) Other Ilflilndal assets 

I Uabililin at Amortized Cosl 

I' 
I . ""', .. 

b) fai, v~lu. hltmchy 

So iNares! bearirY.llinanciai instruments is as foIows' 

fVTPl 

FVTPl 

Aul AliI 
315t lIan:h, 311111,rch, 

2025 "" 
772.00 100.00 

. 

· . 
44-1'5.00 19.100.00 

, 

MOC' C • • 

· · 
· · ~ii · · 

· · <,moo 
· iii '-' 

Moe, 
CM' 

5,752.81 

· 25 .~::: 

19.TOO.00 

· · 
~ 

f k1anclr:1I asl>ets unci rlnancial 'iabil~iO$ are measl.l"ed alf~ .alue in t~ese linarlCial statamenlS and are grouped into three levels 01 a fair yalue hierardly. TI"Ie 
Uvee Levels are defin8d lwlsed on the 0tl3ervab~I!1 01 Sl\Inillcal1l irlIrAS to the me<l5urem~t, <15 follow5. 

Levell : 0u0Ied pIicet (ullldjusted) in acWe maO.ets lor identical MoSoelS or tiabiilies. 
~ 2: Inplb other thin quoted pnces rndudcd witIun LC'Id II/Iat are otIs.e.rvabie lor the asset or liabiilY", ~direety ~ indiredly. 
Level 3: UnobserVable inpW lor the asset or liabil~y. 
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"OllludhiiM Rupnigl r Highway lImittd 
CIN;-lI45J090l2021GOI391615 
Not" to flnandal '~t.m"'b for!tl • .,. ... ended 31. 1 ".reh 2025 
jAlIIJTlOU'il in Indian Rupees i..1kt.1ft1lSS OItIefwise Slated) 

'I 

" (i) TI1Ide R~itbI!!s 
(I) Cash and cash eqlivalents 
(M~ Other financial assets 

I FI'M'''l~blliti" II Amollizecl Cost 
(ij Borrowi1gs 
(ii) Trade Parables 

r 

(ij Trade R~jyal:'es 
(i) Cash and eash eqlivalents 
(iI) Other rl'llW'lCiai a:ssets 

I""""" "',,;, .............. C .. . 
(i) B~ 
(I) Trade Payables , 

Ii i 

5.752.87 

44,415.00 
2.666.04 

5.752.87 
215.65 

19,700.00 
9.1179.06 

Ii I 
approximate \heir carryil'9 M'IO(I'II$ ~Iy due to the :;tOO·term matll"ities of these instn.ment5. The lair vlllue of the financial assets and Iiabil~i!!l15 included 
at the amtllR at which ItIe iMtn.ment eouid be e:ocharged in a C\I1'er( transidion beiweell wilirg parlillS, 

31 C.pltai llanag.mtl'lt 
The Company's objectives whell managmg capital are to sa~ its ability to contnJe as a v<*"9 coram arid 10 O\lClmIse reh,rns 10 shatelJJlders. The capital 
WUd~e 01 the ~ is based on ~emerw's ~ 01 is str.IIIegic and day-to-day needs witt1 a foct& on total equity so as to maintain irwesIor. credikn 
and martlt conlidencl. The II'IaI'I.lg!lr! arc! !he Board of o.redo!s moIlIIor the reu.n 0r'I C8pit.a1. The ~any may !like ~ steps in order to mlintllin. or il 
necessary adjus~ b capital structlXf. 

The Conpany mooilors CitPItaI, on the basis 01 a ruTiler of financial ratios generaly M by irdustry and by tne rating agencies. The Company rooniIors capital usi1g 
debt equity ratio which is debt divici&d by total equity. Debt comprises of J'IOOoOSfem <rrd w-rert maturities of 100:1 tern1 1IebI. The debt equty ratio at the end of the 
reporting period Is as follows: 

12 R'~.n tl' 
A. OiUIIII"'lIilion of R",.nll. 

., 
31st March, 

2025 

., 
31st March, 

"" 

Set 0I.t below Is thl! dinwegation of lhe company's rt~ooe fran conIrach I¥iIh cuslomtIS into operatilYJ segmenl Md Iype of product or services. 

Revenu. H per Ind AS 115 
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kon ludhl.n. Rupn.glr WghWlly limited 
CIN:·U45309012021GOIl91675 
NOIIi 10 linancial st.1llf1Mnts lor Ihe yur Indld 3111 March 2025 
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lakhs urkss othelWise staled) 

R,venul .. plr Ind AS 115 

revenue 

S. C tr t~1a on Ie .o" 
P~rtlcular' 

T lade ReceivalMls Note 6. 1 
Contract Assets Note 5 and Note 6.3 
Contract ua ' 

A, al A, .1 
3111 Mlrch, 31st Mlrch, 

2025 2024 
5752.87 

52,523.92 25,295.42 
- -

i) Trade receivables are non-lnteresl beafing aod the customer profde include National Hghwilv Aulnorit~ oIll¥:Iia. The Companv's aVCI3ge projed e~ecutiOfl 
crcle is around 24 to 36 months. General paymenl lemlS nclwe JIlObilisalioll advilOCe, milestone payments with a c(ed~ IlI!riod falWJilWJ Iron 45 to 60 days_ 

ii) Contract Assets are rctOgnised o~er the period in which services are performed to ICpresent the Compooy's right to colISideratiOl'1 in c):cOOl'ge for goods or 
services trallSferred to the customer. It rolMles balances due from customers under COIlS\ruction contracb Illat arise when the Company receives PliyfTlents 
IfOOl (;lJstomers as pel" terms 01 the contracts however the reYef1!Je is recognised o~er the period tnler input melhod. Any aJllOoot premusty re<:!J,I1lised as a 
contract ass~ is redassifilld 10 IJlIde receivables on satisfaction of the condition attached ie. lulur8 S8f'1ic8 wtich is ntlC@SS8rytoachievlt!hltbillingmilestone. 

Movement in contract balancn during the Iffl.iod 
Partlcuial'l Aul Aul 

31st March, 31st March, 

"" "" Contract asset at the Beginnr.g 01 the year 25,295.42 2.423.62 
Contract asset at the eoo 01 the year 52,523.92 25,295.42 

Net increasel d&ereau 27 28.50 22 71.80 .. For lhe year 2024·25 & 2023·2( there has been ocI l!lC1T).3sc 01 Rs. 27,228.50 lakhs aoo Rs. 22,a71.8O lilllhs respectl'lely due to re.::ognitlOl1 Gf revenue based 
on input method whereas bills tor wOfkdone are certified based 00 contract condition and due to money .... ~hheld by the Oioot dlJ'if'9 the year 2024·25 

~i) COOIfact UabititiC'S relating to construction contracts are baances due 10 cuslome~, these arise when a parliClAar mHestone payment exceeds the r~nue 

reoognrsed to date under the Ifll)IA method and adV!IIlCC receive<! in long lenn OOIlSH\Jction contracts, Ttle aIOOl.J1t of Advance rece ived gels adjusted O'Ier the 
cons1rudion peOod ilS and whefl invCJicing is made to the customer. 

Parti~ul.1'I Aut Aut 
JlItMilJch, 31st MilJch, 

"" "14 
Contract liabiilies at the Beginning of the year - -
Contlilct liablities 3llhe end oltha year - -

Nel Increnel decrNu -

c. SI! oul below II thl . mount of flVinUI re niled from: 
ParticulaB A, at Aut 

3151 M,lII(;h, 3111 M'll:h, 

"" "" Amourll indUoo::::trad liabilities at tho tlegiMing of lho period -
PerlonniilflOe obI' sali5foed in previous l>8I'iod - -

D. Cost to obtafn thl contract 
The Compooy has 001 iocun-lld 001 ro-emental OOSIli 01 ObIainifY:! contracts with a aJStomer and thereflll'8, not recognised an asset for such oosts, 

E. Tl'lnllction prict allocated to the rlmaining performanci obligations 
The transaction price for lOOIaining perlormance o~igat~ shal be received O'J{! r the conlract period in proportion of the wort perfOfTTlEldlservices provided by 
the Company. 
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If~on ludhilna RI.IPflag,r HighlQy lImiltd 
CIN:·U4fi30'3Dl2021 GOI391615 
Not .. to nllinc~IIUtlm..,tllo' III. yu, Indtd 31st Mueh 2025 
(AI arrIOUI'tt in Indian Rupocslakhs lrie:u othe:wi:se stal8d) 

Th tin aett. n •• III the t/'IIIlnln arforman<:e obllgationl (unsatisfied or gartLoIt un 
ParticulaR 

W~hin one ear 

"""""''''' .. , ..... """ 
loW . 

33 Strvlc. Concession Arr,ngements 

tld!.rt l u at 311t March I 8 ac MY, 
Au t Alit 

311IM",l:h, 31st March, 

'''' "" 27S37.41 SOOO2.1X1 
500.00 lOIl.OO 

14 310.00 4 159.90 
42,341.41 M~I.89 

Public 10 private service COIlCeSSIOIl arrangements are recorded in ocoonIance wiItI AppetIdO "Co. Service Conces!lilln Arrargements (Ind A&-115). Appendi;l: 'C" is 

~~: 
a) Tho Gronlor conlro1s or reg~alB5 wflicll services the operatOl' shOOd provide wilh the infrastructure, 10 whooJ il must provide lhem, and at what price: /I'ld 
b) The GIanIIII' cootrols-Ihrough ownership, benefidel erdlemenl, or otherw)se. illy slgnilblnl resldtJill inlerest in IIle WraslructuM allI'IfIllIld oIthe term 01 the 

... -11 both oIlhe aboYe condrtions are met simlAlaneous/y, a fiMncial a~11s recogmzed to Ihe .. tent th21t the operator has an IoflCClIldl ional COfItraccuai righlto recei'le 
ush or other ronanci9l aswllrom Of alltle diwetion oj the Grarlor for ttle setri;;e. 

These Onandal assets are irutiaIl~ recogrized II cost. which IS l.l'defslood <IS the fair value 01 the service provid&d plus other !Wed C05b directly Ittnbulable to the 
0J)era1ion. TIleY are then stated at amortlztllJ cost at tIl8!nd of each fin;n:ial year. 
Irc:on LIJd~ Rlillnagar Highway limited (IrwolRHL) lias entered no service eoncesslorl.mrgemenl wtI1 National HigllWa~ autnorty of India (NIW) dated 25th 
M¥Ch 2022 in terms 01 ~ NHAJ (the grantor) has alA:lw)ri$ed the eompanyto carry the busUleSS of to construc:I. operate and mallQin, Fow'Sj~ lilfle Grnenfldd 
LudhilWl· Ruproagar National Highway no. NH·2Q5K from jl.llClion with NE·5 ~ilage near Manew~ (Ludhlana) 10 jurw:tion with NH205 near Bheora Vdlage (Rupnil\jar) 
Includirg SPII IO KhlB with LtdliMla OypclSS under E!ha<afmaIa P~' in the State of F\.wIjab. PIlctag.3 (Deiu" CII. 86.440 to ~n en. 90.500 and spur to 
kharar Design CI'I. 0.000 10 Design 01. 19.200, total ler9lh 43.26 kin) thereof (Il! "Projed") on desl9". 1luId. finance, operate and traflSler basis. In lenns olille sai ~ 

(lGreerMllt II'COrllRHL has an obligation to oompletc conslnl:tion 01 the project 01 foor 1a00J of HillidWaf Bypass section and to keep the project (ISseIS in prope r 
wOOUng condition iodudIng aU projllC15 iISSeI$ whose liYes haYe expired. The Projed is under AnI1.lity J)atlem. 

The Concesslon period shall be 15 yNllllXIlWfIIOCing from the CcmmettiaI opef(IiiOn Gate. AI the end of the concession perIod, the assets wi be lranclMe<l back to 
National Highway AlAhority 0/ India (NHAI). 

In case of material bfeach in terms oj 8IIr&emenl lhe NHAI and tn:onLRHL l\avl ~It to lenninale the IIgfeernenl ~ Ihe)' /Ire not al*! 10 tool !he event oj defalM in 
act.ooIance with such agreement. 
Compa!ly has recogniZed nMnciaI asset 01 Rs. 51081. 10 Lakhs I.Wlder service concessoo agreement lIIlto the period ended 3111 Man;h 2025 after taking into IICGOUnI 
the recd'lables due tram NHAI on canpIetion of mieslone <IS per terms 01 the contract The company M5 111COQnised reverne d Rs 31756.55 Lakhllo< IIle pOriod 

ended on 31st Ma"th 2025 on construcIlOI\ of Road lroder SCA and OperatlOl"l Revenue as PIt IIW:! AS · 115 felated to "Revenue from CI.ISI~". The company has 
recogrized receivable lJ:'Ider sel\'ice concKslon 8ITMgement and shoYm under Olr.er FinancW CUlTllf1t Assels whicll H wit racelw! as per terms 01 t~e conlfact based 
on the a;JI11!Htion of miestone. as on 31st lI.atdl2025. 

DllClosure ln tlilrms of ApPlndlx 0 of Ind AS 115: 
In tenns 01 the disdokJre raql.ired in AppeniJ 0 in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Customers, a5 notified i'llhe comparues (Indian ~ SIaI'od¥d) rules 2016. the 
M'IOUI1I. COIlStOered in the finMcIaI slatemerti up 10 the balance sheel date are as foIows • 

P~r1icl.Il'f1 For th . ~ear for III. yur 
,"did 3111 end6d 3111 . M.rch 2025 ~rch 2IlU 

Contr<K:t Revenue f(fCO\Imzed 3t,756.55 52,664.21) 
Aggregate M'IOI.InI 01 cost incuned 28.263.29 51,856.39 
A.rnot.n of advance ~ from ClieI1l . 
AmoUflt oj retel1lioo by Cllenl 1.4<\2.82 . 
ProI"lII( Loss) recognised dt.ring the period tor exchang! 01 cons1ruct1Oll seMce for alinarcial oJSSeI 3.493.26 801.90 
Gross arnolD doe !rom CIienI for Coruact Worb; 51.081 .10 31045.29 

3.01 lUM. 
I ) Complny III Letm 

(ij The Comp.,1ny has no leasing lIn"arlgernll1l wflitt. ao-e 'lOfK¥IC8Iabie in nature, Acwrdingly, no righl oJ l.ISe u sets and lease liab~~ies Ila...e been recognise!! 
by the Company. 
(I) The company applies the "short term 1eiJse" ~rVbon exem~1On to all avadable lease agreemerts. Consequenllr. No Righi to use and lease 1~lty has 
been recognised in tile lu'\8rrial statements. 
The lOIowrq are the IWTIOUnts.r~ised in Statement of profit aod loss: 
ParticulaR Fo r th.~ .. r 

.~dlild 31st 
lUrch 2025 

3.11 

For til. }'1I,r 

ended JIll 
March 2024 

3.31 
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Ron luclhiana Rupnallar Hillhway Umit..t 
C1N;-I),(S309DL2021GOl391675 
Not .. to r .. ,nc~IIUtemenb lor til. yur .lKItd 31st Marcil 2925 
(AlImOLrQ ~ Indian R!.p!!S laWIs IJ1ess ot/Iet\Irise Slated) 

b) Company as a lessor 
Comp;r1y has 110 leasillQ arrangement as a lessor. 

" O"'~I 01 delly..t paym.nllo Micro and Smd Ent.rpr~ .. H d.fined und. , the MSMEO Act, 2006 
S.No Particullrl ... t ... t 

31st March, 31st M.rth, 
2025 2024 

.J The principal amotD and the nerest due thereon remaining \MIpaid to Ill)' s~ as at the erll ot each IICCOI..Dlrg year: 
• Prilr.ipal a1lllf'II due to micro aM smaI enlerpris&s · 2.117 
- Inte~sI due on above · · 

bJ The IIn'IOOOt oj interest paid by !lie buyer in tenns oj Seaion 16 of the t.4SMEO Act 2006 aklng Wlth IIle amo!.\"ts 01 the 
pil)'fI'IOO. made to tile supplei' beyoOO lhe 8ppcWjted day during each acc:ounting year. · · 

oj Til!! amount ol lrteres! due and payable for the period 01 delay in making payment (which na-e been peid buI be)'<lnd the 
aflPOinted day oomg the ~1II) but .... ~ho!A lidding the Interest specified under tile MSMEO Act 2006. - · 

dJ The amount oI lntere51 accnHId and remaining l,llpaid at 1M eM oIuch ~:COllnting year. - -
oj The amounl 01 bthef interest remUiing due and payable even in the weceeding ye.at$ . l.Wlt~ well date wren the intoresl 

dues ilS itbcwe '" ;w;tuajty paid to the &mal entefprise lor the purpose of (liSOI()Waf"Ql 00 II de<lucbb16 expendhQ uncler 
Secbon 13 01 the I.1SMED Acl2006. -

36 Corporate Social Responsibility 
The CM1pany is not covered urtder section 135 of tilt Compinin Ad. 2013. Hence, no CSR experolture lias been t~ d~ng!he period. 

37 Oisclosu~ pUrluanl10 stctlon 116 of th. Companies At12013: 
There are 110 loans given, inwstments made and gllarantee given are made by the Company during the period. 

33 Other St.atutory DisclosurH 
The MCA vide notification dated 24th Man;h 2021 has amended Schel:lule II to the Companies Ad. . 2013 In respec! 01 certain dlSdosLl'es I'ffllctt are applcable tWill 

151 Alri 2021. Tile Company has incorporaled the changes as per tilt said amendrnenl in the finarrial statamenls and below dlsclosums am made it compliance nt 
lhe said amendmenl ; 
Ii) The ~y lias no transactions with comparlies slrucl! off!lder sedion 248 of tIM! Conpaoies Act. 2013 or Section 560 of Comp.Jnies Act. 1956 oorWlg the 

fina~ yearend rg 315\ Marcil 2025 and 31st MiIlttl2024. 
jM) The Company t\a$ not tracled or livested in Crypto CISTeflC'( or Vittual Cl.IfTt!ncydlJirg the lmandal yearendirg 3151 Mardl2IJ25 and 31st t.4arctt 2024. 
f ii~ The C~ do not I\ave any Benami property as on 3151 March 2025 and 31st Marth 2024. where any proceeding lias been initiated or pending againsl the 

Cnrnparly for holding any Benarni properly. 

(1'0') The Canpariy t!O not haVll iWlY prior perIOd elTOn beyond the II'reshok! IirniI as specified in the acootJ1ting pdlCies in the tinMcial year ending on 31st Man1l 
2025 and 3181 March 2024 to be disdosed separately in Statement 01 ~es in e<lLity. 

(v) The Company ha5 no cases of any charges or !<ltiSfadiOn which is yet to be regiStered with ROC beyond the SlllIlAory period in the IinarIciaI yea erldmg 31st 
Mardl2<J25 arld 315t ~r~h 2Cl24. 

(vi) Doong the lirlanclal vear 2024-25 and 2023-24. the C<lmpany have noI advanced or Io..-.ed or Wriested furlds to any Oltlflf parson(s) or enl ity(iesJ. Including 
Ioreign enl~ies (Intermediaries) with the ooderstanding tlla! the Interm&!iary 5haII: 
(a) directly or indir.clly lend or invHt in oIher pIIISOfIS or entitl" ldentifttd In ally IT\3IVIer whatsoe'Ier b)' or on bo~f of the ~ (Unimale SelM:f~ries) 

" (b) provide any guarantee, seany or !he like to or on beIWt of the Ultimate Beneflciarie$ 

(n) DurIng the fWlancili yaar 2024-25 al1:l 2023-24, tIw! Company MYe not received any 1\.IId!rom any persot'($) or ertllytles), ildudirg loI"eign enlilin (Funding 
PClrty) with !he ~rdng (whether recorded in'Nlting or othe!WIsa) thai the Company SI\aI: 
(a) directly or indtred/y lend or Invest in other persons or anttties ideItifled In a,.". rnarnef wll<fsoever bV Of on behaf oIlhe Ftming Party (Ultimate 

IlMeftciaries) or 

I';iij The Company has oot granted any 1011115 an~ ildvaoc.es in tile nature of IoaflS to prorTlClters. directors. KMP and ~ related parties in lhe finctrcial yeer eoding 
31st March 2025 arld 31st March 202~ 

(ill) The Company doe, not hlIve any irnrno'IlIbie properties It.'I III 31st 1Mfd, 2025 lind 31s1 Molr\;n 202~ . 

I~) Tile Company has not been declarl!d as wilftj defaulter by tilly blink or f,lI1InclN irI6I~ ~ioo or 9O"6rmlOfl! or ony goverrment a~ in the finllflcial rear 2024-
25l111d 2023-24. 
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Ireo" ludhiiln~ RupnaVIr Highw~y limited 
CIN:.045309DLZ021GOIJ91615 
NoIll lo fiNnc~lltaltm"'b for th. y.,r .nded 31s! Mln:h 2G2S 
tAlI a'llN'lts Wl lndian Rupees l akhs..netS oIherwise r;tmoo) 

(xvi) The Company does noIllaYe aIY'f capital Won· In- Progress, tnvestmef1t Property. Inl8ngiblfl AiselS .1Id Intangible Assets under Dev~ as all1r;t 
Marth 2O~5 and liS! Man:h 2O~4 . DlXing me yew 2024·25 and 2023-24. the CiOmjlaOJ' Ilas not revilued anor 01 it1 Property. plant and equipmen:. 

(~vi) The following lIaXIunting rlll ios 81'8 disclosed: • 

S.No Particulars Numerator ~nomInat()( ~rch ll , 202S March 31, 202" % change RIllton f" 
~h·"V· -" 

'I ClJ'rent ratio (In times) Current Assets Coo'" 1.93 1.03 87.38% Doo to increase 
Liatlil~les • Coo .. 

"" .. "'" Reduction 
" Current Liabiily 

" """" """" • 
business 

' I Debl«/Uity flJl.io (In 1i1le$) Trutl Debt SlIa'ehokier's 3.7J 3_31 1 2.6~ Velllince ..... 
Equ~y 25'''' 

01 Debt service coverage ralio (In EiIIl'lin!P lor debt service : Net Debt soMce " f.25 1.25 0.110% V ..... "'"" times) profit after taxes .. Non-GaSh Imerest & lease 25% 
operating expenses Payments .. 

Principal R,,,,,,,,,,, 
~ RetlJ11 on 8Cjt*y r<6'J Net Pmf~s a~er taxos- A",,,, 7.00% 5.00% 40.00% Due 10 increase 

Prelerence DIVidend Shao"eholde(s 
" 

Profilatliey 
Equity '"' "'"" ''''''''' 01 tnventory IufT"lOYef ratio (1f11imes) Coot 01 goods sold Average NA NA- NA · '-n Tracie receivables!tJTIO¥ef ratio (In Net credit sales ~ Gross Cfed~ A~erago Trade 11.04 18.31 -39.11% Due to pa)'l"llellt 

lJTies) sales- sales retlJ'l\ Receiv"bIe rel!lllll5.ilTkJ1 
from the Cli!l1t 

,I T rad& piI)'a~ tUfllO'lal' ratio ~n Net credit poschases ~ Gross A~&r.IgB Trado 4.01& 8.21 ... ~ .O% Die to reduction 

""01 Cfed~ pu-chases • purchase Parables ill trade payatJle 
rall.n 

hi NtC capital t~flI:IWI' ratio (I" ti'Ile5) Net Sales = Total ules. sales WorUig capbI 11 .37 0.00 100,00".4 Due 10 II'lCrease 
return "Curfllnl assets • WOI'ki~ 

- Currel'll "",. 
liabiitles 

'I N/!I prof~ filIlO Net Profit Net Sales = 2.00% 0.00% 100.00"1. Out to incfll3GC 
T ....... 

" 

ProfitaOi_y 
sales retum ... """ , .... 

D Return 00 ~pltal employ1ld Earnings tIiIfMt interest and capital 6.00% 3.00% 100.00% Out 10 irlcreiIso 

"''' Employed = in Prolitabiity 
TiIIlglble Nel ... "' ... 

Worth • Total ''''''''' DeIJl'" Deterred 
T 3.1 lJab~ily 

' 1 Retoo on investment lr.:ome gorooratod trom lnvC51mtllt N.A. NA. "' IrweslmenlS (Flnanca Inr.ome11 
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Nalu ta fin' l\eI.I I~I_ntl f01' 11'11 ,nr tnd" l1l1 Ma rch 2(125 
(All amourt5 in Ind~ RIlflMl5l.akh5 unless otherwise stated) 

39 Oisclosur. II ptf Ind AS-1 : Disdasur" on p,Hentation of fin.nc la! SlbtellllMs 
Certain rec::lilSSificaiion has been made la 1M comparallve ~s IinanclaI SIMements 10 enhanoe comparability willi tile current yeafs fil'l3rda1 stalements. As a 
~S(j certain line Mems M"«l beefI redassifie1l in the Balance Sheel lhe details ot Wh ich are as under. 

Particulan B, fore R .. R. Ah., R .. 
ciassiflCalion c1lnirlulion classifICation 

I (FY 202).24) (FY 2023-24) 

Curr,"1 Antis: 
O\l1er Cllfenllinlloo"i ilIMel5- Cortrild: AsSlll5 under 5er\'.:e CorcesSlOll 25.295.42 (25.295.42) . 
Arraflgemenls 

Nan e"",.n! "'n et': 
0tIler Non ewenilinMcial asSets- Conlrad As~t5l.W1def Service COIlCe5sion . 25.295.42 25.295.42 
Arrqements 

40 Other dllclasures 
(i) The COOlpany is ~ on 24th December 2021 as whoIy owned subsidiary oIlrcon Iniemationailimiled. 
(i) The Company has a syslem 01 obI~ periodic oorIirmation of balances tram bams and other pa rtiM. So far n tflldeJother payables <Vld loans and adYllnces 

are concerned. the b.iance confirmation leners were sen! to the parti&$. BaI/IIlCCS of some of the Trade Recoivabies, OIlier .... set •• Trade and Other Payable! 
are Wbjed 10 eonfint\llticmllKonciti.Jtions and consequential adjUlllTlen~ if any. Reo;wdi!Ulns Ire carried olot on orJ,IOIDit basIS. However. manaoement does 
no! e~ped to lllve IIfr1 material financial tmpacI ot sucII pendll'YJ oonImnatiom I reconc:IlalJons. 

(m) These financial statements are PlKeniod in Indian Ruoces \\tIici1 is the Cornr!<lfIy'" lunctionai c .... ~ncy. AI financial inIormation p ~$ented 11M been roufldeO to 
tile nearest Lakh (up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise. 

(iv) tn the opirion of !he management. the value oIassetl, on realisation in the ordinary course of blM;iness, wit not be Ie" tMn tile Yalue at wl"lictllhese are Slated 
~ the 6a1ance Sheet 

41 Certairl redassilications and recasting "- been made 10 the oomparative period's ManciaI statements 10 IIfIllara ~illtr willi the rurr&nt year'$ financial 
statements. These reelassific;lti0n5 have no ellect Ofl the rtJlOlte1l reNts of operations. Also previoLlS year ligures ate Shown LIlder br(li;kel () to differentiate from 
cwenl year figures, 

Plate: New DeI"­
Oele: 29.D4.2025 

ft IM.>-' ,- .--

Ankit J, in 
Com~ny s.c,.t.ary 
(ACS No. "'35053) 
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MofIllMIIO Hlllnill 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(61 (bl OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON LUDHIANA RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

The preparation of frnancial statements of IRCON Ludhiana Rupnagar

Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 in accordance with the

financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2O13, is

the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139

(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements

under Section 143 ofthe Act, based on independent audit in accordance with

the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This

is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 April

202s.

I, on behalf of the Comptroiler and Auditor General of India, have

decided not to conduct suppiementary audit of the financial statements of

IRCON Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited for the year ended 31 March

2O25 under Section 1a3 (6)(a) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Datedzol .O7.20.25

Te Singh
Principal Director of Audit

Railway Commercial, New Delhi

(_/
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON LUDHIANA RUPNAGAR HIGHWAY 
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON Ludhiana Rupnagar 

Highway Limited for the year ended 3 1 March 2025 in accordance with the 

financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act , 2013 , is 

the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor 

appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139 

(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements 

under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent audit in accordance with 

the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This 

is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 April 

2025 . 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have 

decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of 

IRCON Ludhiana Rupnagar Highway Limited for the year ended 3 1 March 

2025 under Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated:~~ .07.2025 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

~-
Te~gh 

Principal Director of Audit 
Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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